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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
(CIN: L31909DL1981PLC426653)

NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 43" Annual General Meeting of Samtel India Limited will be held at
registered office of the company situated at 1212, 12 Floor, 43, Chiranjiv Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi
110019 on Tuesday, the 30" day of September 2025 at 10:30 AM to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

L.

Adoption of Audited Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2025 including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with
or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit &
Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

Reappointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Alka Kaura (DIN 00687365) who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers herself for re-appointment and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with
or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and in accordance with
the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 Mrs. Alka Kaura
(DIN 00687365), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible offers herself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.

Appointment of Secretarial Auditor

To appoint Mr. Vinod Goyal, Company Secretary of M/s VINOD GOYAL & ASSOCIATES,
COMPANY SECRETARIES having Office at 109, First Floor, Rishabh Ipex Mall, I P
Extension, Patparganj Delhi 110 092 (Opp. Max Hospital), Company Secretary in whole time
practice, having Membership No. 7231, CP No. 22384 and Peer Review Unique Identification Number:
S2019DE699300 (Cert. no.-2294/2022), as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five
(05) consecutive financial years, i.e., for the financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30 and in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
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Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024, dated December 12, 2024, read
with SEBI circular bearing no. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185, dated December 31,
2024, (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force), and other applicable provisions if any, and on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Vinod Goyal, Company Secretary in
whole-time practice, having Membership No. FCS 7231, C.P. No. 22384 and Peer Review Unique
Identification Number: S2019DE699300 (Cert. no.-2294/2022), be and is hereby appointed as a
Secretarial Auditor of the Company, for conducting the secretarial audit for a period of five (05)
consecutive years, i.e., for the financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30 at such fees, plus applicable taxes and
other out of pocket expenses as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors of the
Company and the Secretarial Auditor.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors / committees of the Board be and is hereby
authorized to take such steps and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered
necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

To appoint M/s VINOD GOYAL & ASSOCIATES, COMPANY SECRETARIES as Secretarial
Auditor and in this regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modificaons(s), the
following Resolution, as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013, if any and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 24A(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or
reenactment thereof for the time being in force), based on the recommendations of Audit Committee
and approval of Board, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint
M/s VINOD GOYAL & ASSOCIATES, COMPANY SECRETARIES (Firm Registration No./
Peer Review Unique Identification Number: S2019DE699300 (Cert. no.-2294/2022), as the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company for a first term of 5 (Five) consecutive Financial Years commencing from
April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2030 at such remuneration including terms of appointment as may be
determined by the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation with the Secretarial Auditors,
from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

Alteration in the Memorandum of Association of the Company

To approve alteration in the Memorandum of Association of the Company and in this regard, to consider
and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications(s), the following Resolution, as Special
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 4, 13 and any other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and in
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accordance with the Table A of the Schedule I of the Act, consent of the members be and is hereby
accorded for alteration in the Memorandum of Association of the Company by:

i) Replacing clause III (B) with new Clause III (B) as enumerated in Annexure I,
ii) Deleting Clause III (C)

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Satish Kaura, Managing Director and Mr. Rajesh Kumar Bhalla,
Director of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, including filing the requisite forms with
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or submission of documents with any other authority, for the purpose of
giving effect to this Resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

5. Adoption of New Set of Articles of Association of the Company

To approve adoption of New Set of Articles of Association of the Company and in this regard, to
consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications(s), the following Resolution, as
Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and any other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the draft regulations
contained in the Articles of Association submitted to this Meeting and as enumerated in Annexure II
be and are hereby approved and adopted in substitution, and to the entire exclusion, of the regulations
contained in the existing Articles of Association of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Satisht Kaura, Managing Director and Mr. Rajesh Kumar Bhalla,
Director of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, including filing the requisite forms with
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or submission of documents with any other authority, for the purpose of
giving effect to this Resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Satish K Kaura

Chairman & Managing Director

Place: New Delhi

Date: 14th August, 2025

Registered Office:

1212, 12™ Floor, 43, Chiranjiv Tower,
Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019.
Email: samtelindia@samtelgroup.com

NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), setting
out all material facts concerning the ordinary and special business under Item Nos. 3 to 5 of the
accompanying Notice of the 43" Annual General Meeting (“Notice”), is annexed hereto and forms
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part of this Notice.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), Government of India has, vide its circular No. 9/2024
dated September 19, 2024 and other circulars issued in this respect (“MCA Circulars”), allowed
inter-alia the conducting of AGMs through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means
(“VC/OAVM”) facilities on or before September 30, 2025, in accordance with the requirements
provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the MCA General Circular dated May 5, 2020. The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has also, vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”), provided certain relaxations from
compliance with certain provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE CIRCULARS
THROUGH VC/OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF
MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA
CIRCULARS AND SEBI CIRCULARS, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF
PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND
HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE
NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE.

Pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, institutional/corporate members are requested to send a duly
certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the AGM
before evoting or attending the AGM to samtelindia@samtelgroup.com

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names
as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, Securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 01, 2019, except in case of request
received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks
associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members
can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, MCS Share Transfer
Agents Ltd. for updating their KYC or any other assistance to enable dematerializaon of their

shares.

SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/POD1/P/ CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024, has
prescribed common and simplified norms for processing investor service requests by RTAs and
norms for furnishing PAN, KYC (contact details, bank details and specimen signature), and
nomination details. As per the said Circular, it is mandatory for the members holding securities in
physical form to, inter alia, furnish PAN, KYC, and nomination details. Physical folios wherein the
said details are not available would be eligible for lodging grievance or any service request only
after registering the required details. Any payments including dividend in respect of such folios
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shall only be made electronically with effect from April 01, 2024 upon registering the required
details. Accordingly, the members are advised to register/update their details with the RTA or DPs,
in compliance with the aforesaid SEBI guidelines for smooth processing of their service requests
and trading without any hindrance.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014, as amended, Members holding shares in physical form may file
nomination in the prescribed Form SH13 with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.
In respect of shares held in dematerialized form, the nomination form may be filed with the
respective Depository Participant. If a Member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination
and record a fresh nomination, the Member may submit the same in Form ISR3 or Form SH14, as
the case may be.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholdings and Register of
Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under Sections 170 and
189 of the Act will be available electronically for inspection by the Members. All documents
referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection by the Members without
payment of any fee from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. 30"
September, 2025. Members seeking to inspect such documents are requested to send an email to
samtelindia@samtelgroup.com and slot for inspection shall be provided at a mutually convenient

me.

Members are requested to register their Email address with the Company/Registrar & Transfer
Agents so as to receive Annual Report and other communication electronically.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along
with Annual Report 202425 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose
email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participants. Members may note that
the Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website
www.samtelgroup.com, websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.

The Company will also be publishing an advertisement in newspaper containing the details about
the AGM i.e. the conduct of AGM through VC/OAVM, date and time of AGM, availability of
notice of AGM at the Company’s website, manner of registering the email IDs of those shareholders
who have not registered their email addresses with the Company/RTA, manner of providing
mandate for dividends, and other matters as may be required.

Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning accounts and operations of the
Company are requested to address their communications to samtelindia@samtelgroup.com at least
seven days before the date of the Meeting. The same will be suitably replied to by the Company.

All correspondence relating to transmission of shares, subdivision of shares, issue of duplicate share
certificates, change of address, dematerialization of shares etc. will be attended to and processed at
the office of the RTA i.e MCS Share Transfer Agents Limited, 179-180, Dsidc Shed, 3rd Floor
Okhla Industrial Area, Phase —I New Delhi —110020 (Email :admin@mcsregistrars.com).

Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform M/s MCS Share Transfer Agents Limited
immediately of: a. Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement;
and Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account
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type, account no. and address of the bank with PIN Code No., if not furnished earlier.

Members are requested to register / update their bank details with their Depository Participants as
well as the Company to enable expeditious credit of the dividend to their bank accounts
electronically.

16 To support the green initiatives taken by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Members are requested to

17.

19.

20.

21.

register their e-mail Address with Depository Participant only and not to the Company or its
Registrar and Transfer Agent. Any such changes effected by the Depository Participant will
automatically reflect in the Company’s subsequent records.

The members whose names appear in the register of members/ list of beneficial owners as received
from Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) on 26™ September 2025 be entitled to vote through e-voting in the Annual General
Meeting in person(s) on the resolutions set for in this notice and the person who are not member as
on cut off date should treat this notice for information purpose only.

A person who becomes a member of the company after dispatch of the Notice of the meeting and
holding shares as on the cut off date i.e 29" August 2025 may obtain the user ID and Password
from the Company’s registrar and Transfer Agent.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from
Saturday, the 27" day of Sept. 2025 to Tuesday, the 30™ day of Sept. 2025 (both days
inclusive).

SCRUTINIZER FOR E-VOTING: Mr.Jatin Gupta, Company Secretary in whole-time-practice
having Membership No. FCS 5651 and C.P. No. 5236 has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinise the e-Voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

Nomination Facility:

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is

available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members holding shares in single name

and who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form

No. SH-13. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomination, he may

submit the same in Form No. SH-14. Both Forms are appended at the end of the Annual Report.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the forms to the Company’s Share

Registrars and Transfer Agents. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain Nomination

forms from their respective Depository Participant.

23. Unclaimed Dividends:

(a)

Transfer to General Revenue Account:

Pursuant to Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, all unclaimed/ unpaid dividends up to the
financial year ended 31st March, 1996 have been transferred to the General Revenue Account of
the Central Government. Members who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants for the said
period are requested to forward their claims in Form No. II prescribed under the Companies Unpaid
Dividend (Transfer to General Revenue Account of the Central Government) Rules, 1978 to Office

of the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana.



SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED — ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

(b) Transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund:

Members are hereby informed that after the amendment of the Companies Act, 1956, w.e.f. 31st
October, 1998, the Company is obliged to transfer any money lying in the Unpaid Dividend
Account, which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of such
transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account, to the credit of Investor Education and Protection Fund
(“the Fund”) established by the Central Government. In accordance with Section 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956, no claim shall lie against the Company or Fund in respect of the amounts
transferred to the Fund.

All the unpaid dividends have already been transferred to the IEPF Account. All unclaimed
dividends transferred to IEPF Authority can be claimed back from the IEPF Authority. For details

please visit www.iepf.gov.in.

24. Process and manner for Members opting to vote through electronic means:
In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, and
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and as per the Listing Agreement, the Company is pleased to provide
to the Members the facility to exercise their right to vote at the 40 Annual General Meeting (AGM)
by electronic means and the business may be transacted through the e-voting services provided by

Central Depository Services Ltd. (CSDL).

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The remote e-Voting period begins on 27" September 2025 at 09:30 A.M. and ends on 29" September,
2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The
Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/ Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-
off date) i.e., 23" September, 2025 may cast their vote, electronically. The voting right of shareholders
shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut- off
date, being 23" September, 2025. The person who is not a member/beneficial owner as on the cut- off date
should treat this Notice for information purpose only.

Members are requested to carefully read the below instructions in connection with remote e-Voting and
procedure for joining the AGM.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
hereafter:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system:

(A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode: In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by
listed companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
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advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting
facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of share holders Login Method | 1. For OTP based login you can click
Individual Shareholders holding securities on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/
in demat mode with NSDL. evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-
digit DP ID, 8-digit Client Id, PAN No.,
Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP
received on registered email id/mobile number and
click on login. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services
website of NSDL viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On
the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available
under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to
enter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& e-Voting during the meeting.

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services,
option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online
for [DeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp.

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the following URL:

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
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Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your
sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & e-Voting during the meeting.

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL
Mobile App “NSDL Speed-¢” facility by scanning
the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting

experience.

Type of share holders Login Method Individual | 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/Easiest

Shareholders holding securities in demat mode facility, can login through their existing user

with CDSL id and password. Option will be made

available to reach e-Voting page without any
further authentication. The users to login Easi
/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
New System Myeasi Tab and then use your
existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi/Easiest user
will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the e-Voting is in
progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the e-Voting option,
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting
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Service Providers, so that the user can visit the
e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest,
option to register is available at CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New
System Myeasi Tab and then click on
registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-
Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN from e-Voting link
available on www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as

After

successful authentication, user will be able to

recorded in the Demat Account.
see the e-Voting option where the e-Voting is
in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in
demat mode) login through their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of
your demat account through your Depository
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able
to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option,
to NSDL/CDSL
Depository site after successful authentication,

you will be redirected
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& e-Voting during the meeting

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use Forget User
ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Login Type Helpdesk Details Individual
demat mode for any technical issues related to | Shareholders holding securities in demat mode
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL | with NSDL Members facing any technical issue
in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at toll free
no.: 022 — 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL Members facing any
technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sendinga  request at:
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call at toll
free no.: 1800-21-09-911

B. Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical
mode:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL e-services i.e. IDEAS,
you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to
NSDL e-services after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically

4. Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or
CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

(a) For Members who hold shares in demat
account with NSDL. 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digit Client ID For example, if
your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is
[2¥**#*%  then your user ID s

(a) For Members who hold shares in demat
account with NSDL. 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digit Client ID For example, if
your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is
[2¥**#**  then your wuser ID is
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b) For Members who hold shares in demat

account with CDSL. 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is

[2# s F A AKX E then your user ID is
12**************

b) For Members who hold shares in demat

account with CDSL. 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is

[ 2¥ s F A A IAEXE then your user ID is
12**************

(c) For Members holding shares in Physical

Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio
Number registered with the company. For
example, if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then wuser ID is
101456001 ***

(c) For Members holding shares in Physical

Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio
Number registered with the company. For
example, if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then wuser ID is
101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

(a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login
and cast your vote.

(b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

(c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL
from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a pdf file. Open the pdf file.
The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i1) If your email ID is not registered: Please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

(a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

(b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

(c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address etc.

(d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.

12
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8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system: How
to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
“VC/ OAVM?” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for Shareholders:

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned
copy (PDF/ JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/Authority letter etc, to the Scrutinizer by
e-mail to scrutinizer@ hfcl.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution/
Power of Attorney/Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution/Authority Letter”
displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through
the “Forgot User Details/ Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com
or call on 022 — 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager, National
Securities Depository Ltd., 3rd Floor, Naman Chamber, Plot C-32, G-Block, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400051 at the designated email address:
evoting@nsdl.com.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this
Notice:
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1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of Shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAAR (self- attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by email to secretarial@ hfcl.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) to
secretarial@hfcl.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you
are requested to refer to the login method explained at Step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting
and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id
and password for e-Voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat accounts to access e-
Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE
AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for
remote e-Voting.

2. Only those Members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and
have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-Voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM
ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL
e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join
General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link
placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and
Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the
notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.
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3. Further, Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience audio/video loss due to fluctuation in their
respective network. It is, therefore, recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at

secretarial@hfcl.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably
SPEAKER REGISTRATION BEFORE AGM:

Members of the Company, holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, September 08, 2025 and
who would like to speak or express their views during the AGM, may register themselves as speakers
by sending their request in advance from Wednesday, September 10, 2025 (09:00 A.M. IST) up to
Thursday, September 11, 2025 (05:00 P.M. IST) mentioning their name, demat account number/ folio
number, e-mail ID, mobile number at secretarial@hfcl.com. The Company reserves the right to restrict
the number of speakers as well as the speaking time depending upon the availability of time for the
AGM. Only Registered Speakers will be allowed to speak during the meeting.

SUBMISSION OF QUESTIONS/QUERIES PRIOR TO AGM:

For ease of conduct of AGM, members who wish to ask questions/express their views on the items of
the businesses to be transacted at the meeting are requested to write to the Company at
secretarial@hfcl.com, during Wednesday, September 10, 2025 (09:00 A.M. IST) up to Thursday,
September 11, 2025 (05:00 P.M. IST) mentioning their name, demat account no./folio number, email
ID, mobile number etc. The Company will, at the AGM, endeavour to address the queries received till
aforesaid dates from those Members who have sent queries from their registered email IDs. Please note
that Members’ questions will be answered only if they continue to hold shares as on the cut-off date.
Such questions by the Members will be taken up during the meeting or replied within 7 days from AGM
date by the Company suitably, if necessary.

Members who will participate in the AGM through VC/ OAVM can also pose question/feedback
through question box option. Such questions by the Members will be taken up during the AGM or
replied within 7 days from AGM date by the Company suitably, if necessary.

DECLARATION OF RESULTS ON THE RESOLUTIONS:

1. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-Voting (votes cast
during the AGM and votes cast through remote e-Voting), within 2 (two) working days from the
conclusion of the AGM, submit a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour
and against the resolution(s) and whether the resolution(s) has/ have been carried or not, to the
Chairperson or a person authorised by him in writing.

2. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.hfcl.com and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com, immediately after the result is
declared. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to the BSE Limited and the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, where the securities of the Company are listed.
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3. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on
the date of the Meeting i.e., September 30, 2025.

Place: New Delhi

Date: 14th August, 2025

Registered Office:

1212, 12" Floor, 43, Chiranjiv Tower,
Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019.
Email: samtelindia@samtelgroup.com

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

SATISH K KAURA

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00011202

Details of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the AGM

[Pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard - 2 on General

Meetings]

Name of Director Alka Kaura
Date of Birth 19-12-1950
Date of Appointment 20-03-2015

Expertise in specific functional areas

Mrs. Kaura is Professional Woman Director and have
considerable experience in the field of General
Administration.

Qualifications Graduate
List of companies in which Directorship | Public Limited:
held as on 31.03.2025 Samtel India Ltd

Samtel Machines & Projects Ltd.
Punswat Consultants Ltd.

Swaka Consultants Ltd.

Private Limited:

Fame Mercantile Pvt. Ltd.
Paramount Capfin Lease Pvt. Ltd.
Blue Bell Trade Links Pvt. Ltd.
Kaura Properties Pvt. Ltd.

Palka Investments Pvt. Ltd.

Chairman/Member of
Committee

Mandatory

Member:
Remuneration
Committee -
Audit Committee -
Stakeholders
Relationship
Committee - Samtel India Ltd.

Samtel India Ltd.
Samtel India Ltd.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT. 2013 (“THE ACT”):

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the businesses mentioned under
Item No(s). 3 to 5 of the accompanying Notice.

Item No. 3

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, (“the Act”) and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations™), Mr. Vinod Goyal, Company Secretary of M/s VINOD
GOYAL & ASSOCIATES, COMPANY SECRETARIES having Office at 109, First Floor, Rishabh Ipex
Mall, I P Extension, Patparganj Delhi 110 092 (Opp. Max Hospital), Company Secretary in whole time
practice, having Membership No. 7231, CP No. 22384 and Peer Review Unique Identification Number:
S2019DE699300 (Cert. n0.-2294/2022), has served as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25.

Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, inter-alia, provides that with effect from April 01, 2025,
the Company is required to appoint a Practicing Company Secretary for not more than one term of five
consecutive years or a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors for not more than
two terms of five consecutive years, with the approval of the members at its Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) and such Secretarial Auditors(s) must be a peer reviewed company secretary and should not have
incurred any of the disqualifications as specified under the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Further, as per the said Regulation, any association of the individual or the firm as the Secretarial Auditor(s)
of the Company before March 31, 2025, shall not be considered for the purpose of calculating the tenure of
the Secretarial Auditor.

Taking into account the above requirements, the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), at its
meeting held on August 14, 2025 has, considering the experience and expertise and on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, recommended to the members of the Company, appointment of Mr. Vinod Goyal,
Company Secretary of M/s VINOD GOYAL & ASSOCIATES, COMPANY SECRETARIES having
Office at 109, First Floor, Rishabh Ipex Mall, I P Extension, Patparganj Delhi 110 092 (Opp. Max Hospital),
Company Secretary in whole time practice, having Membership No. 7231, CP No. 22384 and Peer Review
Unique Identification Number: S2019DE699300 (Cert. no.-2294/2022), as the Secretarial Auditor for a
term of 05 (five) consecutive financial years, commencing from the financial year 2025-26 to the financial
year 2029-30 on such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company from
time to time.

Mr. Vinod Goyal is a Commerce graduate and a Fellow Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India. He brings with him over 25 years of rich and diverse experience in the corporate sector. He
possesses extensive and diverse expertise in corporate law, with a strong track record in advisory,
consulting, and compliance matters.

Item No. 4
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The Companies Act, 2013, has prescribed a new format of Memorandum of Association (“MoA”) for all
companies. Accordingly, with a view to align the existing MoA of the Company with Table A of the
Schedule I of the Act and in accordance with Section 4 and 13 of the Act, it is proposed to alter the MoA
of the Company. There is no change in the main objects of the Company. [Clause III (A)]

1) Since the proposed alterations, deletions, insertions etc. to the present Clause 111 (B) of MoA are
numerous, it is more convenient to adopt an altogether new Clause III (B) incorporating all the
proposed alterations, and

ii))  deleting Clause III (C) in consonance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors recommend the Special Resolution as set out in item No. 3 of the Notice for the
approval of the Shareholders.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested (financial or otherwise) in the resolution except to the extent of their shareholding
in the Company, if any.

The Board has unanimously approved the above proposal at its meeting held on August 14, 2025.
Item No.5

The existing Articles of Association (“AOA”) of the Company are framed as per the erstwhile Companies
Act, 1956 and contain reference to the provisions of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, which have been
amended in accordance with the new provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, it is considered
expedient to amend and re-state the existing AoA of the Company and to bring them in line the new
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and the rules
framed thereunder, amendment of Articles of Association of the Company requires approval of the
members of the Company by way of passing a special resolution to that effect.

The Board of Directors recommend the Special Resolution as set out in item No. 4 of the Notice for the
approval of the Shareholders.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested (financial or otherwise) in the resolution except to the extent of their shareholding
in the Company, if any.

The Board has unanimously approved the above proposal at its meeting held on August 14, 2025.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

SATISH K KAURA

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00011202

Place: New Delhi, Date: 14th August, 2025
Registered Office:

1212, 12™ Floor, 43, Chiranjiv Tower,
Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019.

Email: samtelindia@samtelgroup.com
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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
Registered Office: 1212, 12th Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi 110019.
CIN: L31909DL1981PL.C426653
43" Annual General Meeting on Tuesday the 30" September 2025
PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management

Name 0f the MEMDET(S) & .eoviiiiiieeiiieiie ettt ee ettt et e et eeesteeestee e tbeesseeesaeesseessseessseesssseessenans
RegiStered AdAresS: o uui ettt et e e

Regd. Folio No. / DPID/CHNEt ID INO. & ..voccvieiieiieieeiiieseesee et seesiee e seeseesieessesseeseaesnnesssesssensnas

and Administration) Rules, 2014)

I/'We

(INAITIE(S ) v evveenreeteeteenteeteeteeeteasteesseeseesssesssesseesssesssessassseasseanseanseeseessseasseaseesssesssesssassensseassensseensesnsennsennsenns of
(ALAATESS).c.veeveeeieeieett ettt e st e st e ste e teestee b e es s e esseessesseesseessaessaesseanseensaenseasseasseessesseessaessaensaeseensennseensenssenns

being a Member / Members of ....................... Shares of SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED hereby appoint
[0 3301 T USRS of
(ALQATESS ). veeveeeiietieitee ettt e st e et e s te e s bt e s bt essees s e essesseesaessaesseesseanseesseesseesseesseassessaensaessaesseesssenseensesnsenssennes
or failing him
(ININIC) ... e ettt ettt ettt et e et e e st e e et e e stbee s s beesbeeasseeesaeessbaessseeasseaassaaassaeesseaasseeasssaaseaesseesssaesnssansesenssennses of

(AN 16 (T T USRS

as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 42nd Annual General
Meeting of Samtel India Limited to be held on Tuesday, the 30™ September 2025 at 10.30 A.M. at
registered office of the company at 1212, 12™ Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi -

110019 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

S. Against | For
Resolutions

No.

1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the

Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 including the
Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit &
Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together
with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon ,

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Alka Kaura (DIN 00687365)
who retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-
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appointment and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass
with or without modification(s), resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

3. To appoint Mr. Vinod Goyal, Company Secretary of M/s VINOD
GOYAL & ASSOCIATES, COMPANY SECRETARIES having Office
at 109, First Floor, Rishabh Ipex Mall, I P Extension, Patparganj Delhi
110 092 (Opp. Max Hospital), Company Secretary in whole time
practice, having Membership No. 7231, CP No. 22384 and Peer Review
Unique Identification Number: S2019DE699300 (Cert. no.-2294/2022),
as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five (05)
consecutive financial years, i.e., for the financial year 2025-26 to 2029-
30 and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

4, To approve alteration in the Memorandum of Association of the
Company and in this regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with
or without modifications(s), Resolution, as Special Resolution

5. To approve adoption of New Set of Articles of Association of the
Company and in this regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with
or without modifications(s), Resolution, as Special Resolution

Note:

1. The proxy form should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. It is optional to indicate your preference , if you leave the for, against column blank against any
or all resolution, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem
appropriate.

3. For the Resolution, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 43™
Annual General Meeting.

SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L31909DL1981PLC426653

Registered Office: 1212, 12th Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi 110019.
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43" Annual General Meeting on Tuesday, the 30™ Sept. 2025
ATTENDANCE SLIP

42nd Annual General Meeting on Tuesday, the September 30" , 2025

Name of the Member:

Name of the Proxy Holder, if any:
Regd. Folio / DPID/Clinet ID No.:

No. of Shares:

I/ we hereby record my/our presence at the at the 43° Annual General Meeting of Samtel India Limited
to be held on Tuesday, the 30™ September 2025 at 10.30 A.M. at registered office of the company at
1212, 12" Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019.

Signature of the Member / Proxy holder
Note :

1.

Members/Proxy holders are requested to bring this Attendance Slip duly filled in and signed with
them when they come to the meeting and hand it over at the ATTENDANCE VERIFICATION
COUNTER at the entrance of the Meeting Venue.

No Attendance slip shall be issued at the meeting.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the Financial year 2024-25 & Notice of the AGM
alongwith the attendance slip & Proxy form is being sent to all the members whose email address is
registered with the Company / DP unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same.
Members receiving electronic copy & attending the AGM can print copy of the Attendance slip.
Physical copy of the Annual Report for the Financial year 2024-25 & the Notice of the AGM
alongwith Attendance Slip & Proxy form is being sent in the permitted mode (s) to all members
whose e-mail is not registered or have requested for hard copy. Please bring your copy of the Annual
Report to the Meeting.

The Meeting is of members only and you are requested not to bring with you any person who is not a
member or a proxy.

Signature of the Member / Proxy holder

E-Voting Particulars
EVSN
(E Voting Sequence Number)

User 1D Password
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND OUTLOOK:

The financial year gone by was again a difficult year for the Company. The revival plan could not be acted
upon fully due to severe liquidity crunch and other factors. The Company is putting more efforts to get rid

of initial bottlenecks including infrastructure issues for a much better performance in coming years.

To come out of the continued difficulties and cash flow issues the Company is exploring business
opportunities concerning electronic displays and other electronics goods in Transport Sectors including

Railways..

The income stood at Rs. 15.13 lacs as against total income of Rs. 42.45 lacs of the previous financial year.
The Company ended the financial year with net loss of Rs. 10.48 lacs as against net loss of Rs. 2.25 lacs

during the previous financial year.

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS:

a) Loans: Unsecured
Unsecured Loan aggregating to Rs. 8.31 lacs were outstanding as on 31% March 2025 (Previous
Year Rs. 8.81 lacs). No loan was availed by the Company during the year under review.

b) Fixed Assets:
The net fixed assets at the end of the Last financial year were Nil as against Nil as on 31% March,
2025.

c) Current Assets:
The total current assets decreased to Rs. 458.40 lacs as on 315 March, 2025 from Rs. 473.75 lacs
as on 31% March, 2024.
Cash and Bank Balances decreased to Rs. 5.27 lacs from Rs. 5.80 lacs. Loans and advances
increased to Rs. 452.24 lacs this year from Rs. 424.11 lacs at the end of the previous year.

d) Current Liabilities:
Current Liabilities have also decreased to Rs. 272.92 lacs as on 315 March, 2025 from Rs. 277.79
lacs as on 31% March, 2024.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & ITS ADEQUACY:

The Company has in place adequate internal audit and control systems. The Company has an independent
audit committee which exercises requisite powers and control as envisaged in SEBI (LODR) Regulations

2015 and as per the Listing Agreement.

M/s. Vinod Goyal & Associates has been appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and M/s. R.
Sharma & Associates, New Delhi has been appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS:

The efforts of the Company to explore and engage in trading activities may not have shown good results

during the year under review, however, the analysis of market, indicates a growing trend in trading of
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electronic goods. The Company would like to explore the opportunity more so as to establish itself as a

trading house in years to come.

To further the business interest and have a continuous revenue flow, the Management is exploring various
other opportunities including opportunities in electronic displays and other electronic goods in Transport

Sectors including Railways.

However, such activities will be initiated only after carrying out all due diligence and obtaining requisite
statutory approval and the same can be time consuming. Availability of fund is also very crucial for

commencing any new business activities.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statement in this 'Management Discussion and Analysis Report' describing the Company's objectives and
expectations may be considered as 'forward looking statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and
regulations. Actual results might differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied. The
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update these forward-looking statements to reflect

subsequent events or circumstances.
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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - 2024-25

Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance report for the financial year 2024-25 (“FY25”), which forms part of
the Directors’ Report, is prepared in accordance with Regulation 34, read with Schedule V to the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™).

This Report is in compliance with the Listing Regulations. Corporate Governance is a set of
standards which aims to improve the Company’s image, efficiency and effectiveness. It is the road
map, which guides and directs the Board of Directors of the Company to govern the affairs of the
Company in a manner most beneficial to all the Shareholders, the Creditors, the Government and

the Society at large.

Your Company is committed to highest standards of Corporate Governance and disclosure
practices to ensure that its affairs are managed in the best interest of all stakeholders. The Company
is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V
and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, as
applicable, with regard to Corporate Governance. A report on compliance with the implementation
of Regulation 34(3) read with Chapter IV and Schedule V to the Listing Regulations is given

below:

1. Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Samtel India Limited is committed to upholding corporate governance values and has been practicing
the principles of good corporate governance Samtel is led by highly independent Board, which provides
its oversight and strategic counsel. The Company has established systems and procedures to ensure that
the Board of the Company is well-informed and well-equipped to fulfill its oversight responsibilities

and to provide management the strategic direction it needs to create long-term shareholder value.
2. Board of Directors
a) Composition & Category of the Board (As on March 31, 2025)

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of four Directors, out of which two Directors
are non executive and independent. The Non Executive Directors are proficient in their own fields
and bring with them decades of experience in the areas of finance, technology, legal and general

management.

All independent directors of your company have given declarations confirming that they meet the
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criteria of independence as prescribed both under the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Mr. Satish K. Kaura, Chairman & Managing Director, is the only Executive Director of the
Company who is responsible for overall management of the Company. His current tenure of 5 years
is effective from 09.11.2021 till 08.11.2026. Mr. Rajesh Bhalla and Mr. Dhruv Sethi are the
Independent Directors and Mrs. Alka Kaura is Woman Director on the Board of the Company.
Mr. Bhalla was re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire
by rotation, to hold office upto 1st October, 2029. Mr. Sethi have been re-appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office upto 25th
March, 2029.

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. None of the Directors
on the Board is a member of more than Ten committees and Chairman of more than five committees
across all the companies in which he is a Director. All the Directors have made disclosures
regarding their directorships and memberships on various Committees across all companies in

which they are Directors and Members.
Number of Board Meetings and Attendance Record of each Director

During the Financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors met six times. The dates on which
meetings were held are 29th May, 2024, 3™ July, 2024, 18™ July, 2024, 14th August, 2024, 14th
November 2024, and 14" February 2025. The maximum time gap between any two consecutive
meetings was less than four months.

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings, Last Annual General Meeting and number of
other Directorship and Chairmanship/Membership of Committee of each Director in various
companies are as under:

Name of Category / No. of No. of Attendance |No. of No. of Committee
Directors Status of Board Board in last AGM Directorship positions held
Directorship meetings meetings held on 30" in other
held during attended September, Public Chairm Member
2024-25 during 2024 Limited an
2024-25 Listed
Companies
Mr. Satish K. |Executive/ 6 6 Yes 0 0
Kaura Promoter
Director
Mrs. Alka Non 6 6 No 0 -
Kaura Executive
Independent
Director
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Mr. Rajesh Independent 6 6 Yes 0 0
Bhalla Director
Mr. Dhruv Lodditieaal 6 6 Yes 0 3
Sethi Independent

Director

No sitting fees is being paid to any Directors for attending the Board Meetings.

As mandated by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all the

Independent Directors on the Company's Board are non-executive and:

> Apart from receiving Director’s remuneration, do not have any material pecuniary relationships or

d)

transactions with the Company, its promoters, its Directors, its senior management or and associates
which may affect independence of the Director ;
Are not related to promoters or persons occupying management positions at the Board level or at
one level below the Board ;
Have not been an executive of the Company in the immediately preceding three financial years
Are not partners or executives or were not partners or executives during the preceding three years
of the:
e Statutory Audit Firm or Internal Audit Firm that is associated with the Company
e Legal Firm(s) and Consulting Firm(s) that have a material association with the Company.
Are not material suppliers, service providers or customers or lessors or lessees of the Company,
which may affect independence of the Director
Are not substantial shareholders of the Company i.e. do not own two percent or more of the block
of voting shares.
Have furnished annual disclosure that they satisfy the conditions of their being independent as
laid down under LODR Rules of SEBI and the Listing Agreement.

Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se

Except Mr. Satish K Kaura and Mrs. Alka Kaura, none of the Directors are related to each other
within the meaning of the term ‘relative’ as per Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 20013.

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors

As on March 31, 2025 Mr. Satish K Kaura and Mrs. Alka Kaura, Non Executive (Woman) Director
holds 38067 and 8273 number of equity shares of the Company respectively. None of the
Independent Director holds any equity shares in the Company.

The Company has not issued any convertible instruments.
Board Procedure

The Board Meetings of the Company are convened by the Chairman of the Board. Sufficient notice
in writing is given to all Directors for the Board meetings and/or other Committee Meetings. All

important matters concerning the working of the Company along with requisite details are placed
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before the Board.

Information supplied to the Board

The Board has complete access to all information of the Company including inter-alia, the

information to be placed before the Board of Directors as required under the Listing Regulations.
Compliance Reports of all Laws applicable to the Company

The periodical reports with regard to compliance of all Laws applicable to the Company including
steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any, are reviewed by the
Audit Committee and the Board.

Compensation or Profit Sharing

None of the Director or Promoter of the Company has entered into any agreement for himself or
on behalf of any other person, with any shareholder or any other third party with regard to
compensation or profit sharing in connection with dealings in the securities of the Company.

Independent Directors

Independent Directors plays an important role in the governance process of the Board. They bring
their expertise and experience in the deliberations of the Board. This enriches the decision making

process in the Board meetings with different point of view and experiences.

The independent directors have confirmed that they meet with the criteria of independence laid
down under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.

As stipulated in the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of the
Independent Directors of the Company was held on 17" March, 2025 to review the performance
of the non-independent directors (including Chairman) and the Board as whole. The independent
directors also assessed the quality and time lines of flow of information between the Company
Management and the Board which is necessary to effectively and reasonably perform and discharge
their duties.

The independent directors appointed by the Board are given induction and orientation with respect
to the Company’s vision, core values including ethics, corporate governance practices, financial
matters and business operations by having one to one meeting. During the year under review the

Company has not appointed any independent director.

Audit Committee

Presently, the Audit Committee comprises of 3 members viz. Mr. Dhrvu Sethi, Mrs. Alka Kaura and

Mr. Rajesh Bhalla. All members of the Audit Committee are Non-Executive and Independent Directors
except Mrs. Alka Kaura, who is a Non Executive Director. Mr. Dhruv Sethi is the Chairman of the

Audit Committee. The Members of the Audit Committee have accounting and financial management

expertise.
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The terms of reference, roles and power of the Audit Committee as revised and stipulated by the Board

of Directors from time to time are in conformity and in line with the statutory and regulatory

requirements as prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations,

which, include the following:

Role of Audit Committee

1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the

Company;

3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

4) Reviewing, with the Management, the annual and periodic financial statements and auditors report

thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a.

g.

Matters required to be included in the directors’ responsibility statements being part of
Directors’ Report in terms of Clause ( ¢) of sub section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by

management;

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
Disclosure of any related party transactions

Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

5) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board

for approval;

6) Reviewing and monitoring the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit

process;

7) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

8) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

9) Valuation of undertakings and assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

10) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

11) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the

internal control systems;

12) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
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audit department, if any;
13) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

14) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into the matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature

and reporting the matter to the Board;

15) Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any of concern;

16) To look into reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositors, debenture holders,

shareholders (in case of non payment of declared dividend) and creditors.
17) To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

18) Approval of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and

background, etc of the candidate;
19) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee;
In addition to the above, the Audit Committee reviews the following information

a) Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

b) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted
by the Management;

c) Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by statutory auditors;

d) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weakness; and

e) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor;
Powers of Audit Committee

A) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference

B) To seek any information from any employee

C) To seek outside legal or other professional advice

D) To secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if consider necessary.
Details of Meetings and Attendance

During the year, the Audit Committee met Four (4) times on 29th May, 2024, 14th August, 2024, 14th

November 2024 and 14" February 2025. The attendance of each Committee members is as under

Name of Directors & Position No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended
Mr. Dhruv Sethi, Chairman 4 4
Mrs. Alka Kaura, Member 4 4
Mr. Rajesh Bhalla, Member 4 4

No sitting fee is being paid to any member for attending the meeting of the Audit Committee.
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The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present in the last Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 30™ Sept. 2024. Other two members are Mr. Rajesh Bhalla & Mrs. Alka Kaura.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee consists of three members, out of which two are
independent directors. Mr. Dhruv Sethi has been nominated as the Chairman of the Committee and the
other two members are Mr. Rajesh Bhalla & Mrs. Alka Kaura.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has been delegated the following powers by the Board of

Directors:

a. To fix, revise and recommend the remuneration of the Chairman and Managing Director.

b. To fix, revise and recommend the remuneration structures of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
of the Company.

During the year, there was no occasion of the meeting of Nomination & Remuneration Committee

therefore no meeting of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee was held during the Financial

Year.

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the KMPs of the Company:

Mr. Satish K Kaura - Managing Director

Mr. Anurag Manhas - Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Divya Mittal — Company Secretary who joined company w.e. f. 30" May, 2025 in place of Ms.
Bhavika Sharma - Company Secretary, who has resigned w.e.f. 10" July, 2024.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Presently, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee consists of three members viz. Mr. Dhruv Sethi,
Non-Executive Independent Director as Chairman and Mr. Rajesh Bhalla and Mrs. Alka Kaura as
Members. Ms. Divya Mittal, Company Secretary is the designated Compliance Officer. Ms. Divya
Mittal has joined as Company Secretary w.e.f. 30™ May, 2025 in place of Ms. Bhavika Sharma who

has resigned from her post from the company.

The Committee inter-alia, has the following role

resolving the grievances of the security holders of the company including complaints related
to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue
of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders

review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the company in respect of various services
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the company for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices
by the shareholders of the company.
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During the year under review the Company has not received any complaint from its

investors/shareholders.

There are no legal proceedings with regard to transfer of shares, except in respect of shares which have
been attached by the Court / Govt. Authorities. Your Company has taken appropriate action to protect

the interest of investors
During the year, the Committee had met 20 times. All the members had attended the meetings.

With a view to regulate trading in Securities by the Directors and Designated Employees, the Company
has adopted a “Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading”.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The Company has not constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
Subsidiaries Companies

The Company does not have any subsidiary company.

General Body Meetings

(a) The details of the last three Annual General Meetings are as under

AGM Day, Date & Time Venue No. of
special
resolutions
passed
42" 30th September, 1212, 12™ Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower, Nehru 5
2024 at 9.30 A.M. Place, New Delhi - 110019
41st  30th September, 1212, 12 Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower, Nehru 2
2023 at9.30 AM.  Place, New Delhi — 110019
40th  30th September, Village Naya Nohra, Kota Baran Road, Tehsil- 1
2022 at 9.30 AM.  Ladpura, Distt- Kota, Rajasthan- 324001.

(b) (i) During the year under review, there was no postal ballot conducted by the Company.

(i1)) In the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Special Resolution (s) as may be considered

necessary/required would be passed through Postal Ballot.
(ii1)) Means of Communication

The quarterly un-audited financial results and annual audited financial results duly approved by the
Board of Directors are sent to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) where the Company’s shares are
listed/pending of re-listing immediately after the Board Meeting. The Company also posts its financial
results for all quarters on its website/emailed and that of the Stock Exchange i.e BSE Limited through
BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Center.

10. CEO/CFO Certifications
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The Chairman & Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company have given

annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of the Listing
Regulations at its meeting held on 29th May, 2025.

General Shareholders Information

(a)

(b)

Annual General Meeting to be held in physical mode on:

Date : 30.09.2025

Day Tuesday

Time : 10.00 AM

Date / Tentative date for the Financial Calendar / Results

- Results for quarter ending 30.06.2024 : By 14 August, 2024

- Results for quarter ending 30.09.2024 : By 14 November,2024
- Results for quarter ending 31.12.2024 : By 14 February,2025

- Results for year ending 31.03.2025 : By 29th May, 2025

(c) Book Closure Date

27% September, 2025 to 30™ September, 2025 (Both days inclusive)

(d) Listing of Equity Shares

(e)

The equity shares were earlier listed on BSE Limited, Mumbai. The trading symbol is 500371 and
the re-listing of equity shares are under consideration with BSE Ltd. in compliance to the order
passed by Hon’ble SAT on our appeal filed before them. The ISIN in NSDL is INE5S38C01017.

Note: The Company has paid the entire dues of BSE Limited including Listing Fees as per the
direction of Hon’ble SAT vide its order dated 30" April, 2025.

Stock Market Data at BSE in 2024-25

At present, the equity shares of the Company has been delisted vide order dated 08.05.2024 against
which Company preferred an Appeal before Hon’ble SAT. During the course of hearing and
proceedings Hon’ble SAT has directed vide its order dated 30" April , 2025 to the company to
make all compliances good and pay the outstanding dues of BSE Ltd. with the consultation of BSE
Ltd. , so that delisting shall be revoked by the stock exchange and consider for re-listing of equity
shares of the company.

(f) Address for correspondence for share transfer and related matters

For shares held in physical form:
The Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) :

MCS Share Transfer Agents Limited,

179-180, Dsidc Shed, 3rd Floor
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Okhla Industrial Area, Phase —I

New Delhi —110020
PhoneNo0:011-41406149-51,Fax:-011-41709881 ,
Email: admin@rmecsregistrars.com

Website:www.mcsregistrars.com,
CINNO.U67120WB2011PLC165872

Note: The company is not accepting any physical shares for transfer in pursuant to the direction
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). No requested for physical transfer of shares is
being entertained effective from December 5, 2018.

For conversion of shares into Demat form: To be submitted with your respective depository
participant

(g) Share Transmission cum Transfer / Duplicate shares in physical form:

Presently, the process for the shares, which are received in physical form for transmission or issue
in duplicate, are being completed on completion of all formalities as per required rules, subject to

the documents being valid and complete in all respects.

(h) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2025

Category No. of %age of
S. No. Shares shares

1 Promoters & Associates 3126485 44.11
2 Non-Resident Indians 170295 2.40
3 Overseas Bodies Corporates 414349 5.85
4 Mutual Fund & UTI 5430 0.08
5 | FIIS 585 0.01
6  Banks/Financial Institutions/Insurance Companies 345361 4.87
7  Indian Bodies Corporate 1193699 16.84
8 |Indian Public 1780354 25.12
9 | Trusts/HUF/Clearing Members 51385 0.72

Total 7087943 100

Including 7409 partly paid up equity shares.

Categories of Shareholders as on 31.3.2025

Range / Category Nos. of % age to total | Nos. of %age to
(Number of shares) shareholders | shareholders | Shares equity capital
held
1 500 6613 93.54 684348 9.65
501 1000 211 2.99 173803 2.45
1001 2000 102 1.45 158250 2.23
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2001 3000 45 0.64 117757 1.66
3001 4000 19 0.28 60680 0.86
4001 5000 21 0.30 98496 1.39
5001 10000 24 0.31 166940 2.35
10001 50000 21 0.30 465663 6.58
50001 100000 6 0.08 431409 6.09
100001 | above 8 0.11 4730597 66.74
Total 7070 100 7087943 100

(j) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The periodical beneficiary data are not being shared by NSDL & CDSL due to non-payment of
annual maintenance fees. Thus, accurate status with regard to shares in dematerialized and physical

form can not be furnished.
(k) Address for Correspondence

The Shareholders may address their communication/grievance/queries suggestions to

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent Registered Office Address Correspondence

MCS Share Transfer Agents Limited,

179-180, Dsidc Shed, 3rd Floor
Okhla Industrial Area, Phase —1
New Delhi —110020
PhoneNo0:011-41406149-51,

Fax:-011-41709881 ,

Email Id:admin@mcsregistrar.com

1212, 12th Floor, 43 | 1212, 12th Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower,
Chiranjiv Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019
Nehru Place, New | Phone No.011-40555700

Delhi - 110019 Fax no.: 011-41555006

Phone No.011- website: www.samtel.india.ltd.com
40555700 Email ID:

samtelindia@samtelgroup.com

12. Disclosures
(a) Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Company has no materially significant related party transactions with any of
related party, which is considered to have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at
large. Suitable disclosures as required by the Indian Accounting Standards -24 (Ind AS-24) has

been made in the Notes on the Financial Statements.
All related party transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis.

(b) Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism
The Company has drawn up and implemented the Whistle Blower Policy duly approved by the
Board.

( ¢) Accounting Treatment

In the preparation of financial statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (ICAI) to the extent
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applicable.
(d) Risk Management

The Company has laid down procedures to inform the members of the Board about the risk
assessment and minimization procedures. The Company has framed the risk assessment and

minimization procedure, which is being reviewed by the Board from time to time.
(e) Proceeds from Public Issue, Rights Issue, Preferential Issue, FCCB Issue

During the year, the Company has not raised any funds from public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue and FCCB issue.

() Management Discussion and Analysis
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report.

(g) Penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory
Authority

During the year under review, no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by
Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matter related to Capital Markets
during the last three (3) years.

(h) Code of Conduct

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct (the Code) applicable to all the
Directors.

(1) Review of Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board in its report to the Members of the Company have confirmed that the Annual Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared as per applicable Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) and policies and that sufficient care has been taken for maintaining adequate

accounting records.

() The Company has complied with all the applicable conditions of Corporate Governance

requirements as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.
Other Requirements as per Listing Regulations
(i) The Board

The Chairman of the Company is the Executive Chairman. However, he does not draw any
remuneration. All Directors including Independent Directors are appointed/re-appointed by the

Board from time to time.
(i1) Shareholders’ Right

The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results of the Company are submitted to the Stock

Exchange and uploaded on the website of the Company.
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(iii) Audit Qualifications

Qualifications of the Statutory Auditors have been adequately dealt with in the Directors’ Report
to the Members of the Company.

14. Compliance Certificate

Compliance Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary is annexed herewith.
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR 2024-25

To

The Members

SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED (THE COMPANY)
1212, 12th Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower,

Nehru Place, New Delhi 110019.

Company Registration No.: L31909DL1981PLC426653 (Company has filed e-forms with MCA to
the effect of shifted its registered office of the company from the state of Rajasthan to NCT of
Delhi & pending approval of forms, new CIN is allotted & generated. Considering situation, since
board has already finalized and approved the address of registered office in Delhi, the AGM and
other formalities are being conducted in NCT of Delhi itself)

1.

(b)

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by SAMTEL INDIA
LIMITED CIN: L31909DL1981PLC426653 for the 12 months period from April 1, 2024 to March 31,
2025, as stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(LODR) / the Listing Agreement executed by the said Company with Stock Exchange where the
shares of the Company was listed (presently under suspension & delisted on account of non
compliances of certain regulations of LODR). BSE has issued it order dated 08.05.2024 and delisted
the equity shares of the company form the stock exchange against which company has filed an
appeal before SAT of SEBI, and still pending.

The compliance of conditions of corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliances of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us,
we certify that,

company has not paid listing fee since 2015-16 for which BSE has issued a show case notice with
effect to compulsorily delisting of equity shares of the company from the stock exchange. The
management has informed that they are in negotiation / discussion / process with the BSE to
restore the listing of equity shares at BSE.

The Company's equity shares are not quoted at BSE due to non payment of Listing fee and the
promoters holding have also been freezed in accordance with SEBI regulations. On delisting of
equity shares of the company from BSE vide its order dated 08.05.2024, the company is preferred
an appeal before SAT of SEBI. Since the case is pending before SAT.

The Company is not in compliance with various other clauses of Listing Agreement and applicable
regulations on certain occasion and thus the present report be construed as a qualified report. In
pursuance to the order dated 30.04.25 of the Hon’ble SAT, the Company has complied with regard
to payment of entire dues of BSE Ltd. and complied with non-compliances.
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4. We further state that present compliance certificate/report is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Vinod Goyal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Vinod Goyal
CP No.: 22384
FCS No.: 7231
Place: Delhi
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Samtel India Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 4314 Annual Report together with the audited financial

results for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Financial Results

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Financial Year | Financial Year
2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from operations (Gross) 0.50 0.00
Less : Excise Duty 0.00 0.00
Revenue from operations (Net) 0.50 0.00
Other Income 14.63 42.45
Profit/ (-) Loss before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 15.13 42.45
Interest 5.55 5.33
Depreciation 0.00 0.00
Sales Tax Provisions Written Back 0.00 0.00
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (10.29) (2.25)
Provision for Tax Nil Nil
Deferred Tax Assets 0.19 0.00
Profit /(Loss) for the year (10.48) (2.25)

Transfer to General Reserves

During the year, the amount of Rs. NiL has been transferred to the reserve and surplus accounts..

Dividend

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 2024-25.

Share Capital

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any kind of equity shares including shares
with differential voting rights, Bonus, Sweat Equity or Shares under employee stock options etc. The
Company does not have any scheme to fund its employees to purchase the shares of the Company.
The paid up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025 was Rs. Rs. 708.42 Lakhs
consisting of 7087943 number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

As on March 31, 2025 none of the Directors of the Company except the following, held shares or
convertible instruments of the Company
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Name of the Director | Equity Shares Held

Mr. Satish K Kaura 38067

Mrs. Alka Kaura 8273

Company Performance

During the financial year under review, the Company registered Revenue / other income of Rs. 15.13
lakhs as against Revenue / other income of Rs. 42.45 lakhs and Company ended the financial year
with net loss of Rs. 10.48 lakhs as against net loss of Rs. 2.25 lakhs during the previous financial
year.

The manufacturing activities of the Company was closed in 2003-04 due to technology obsolescence.
Thereafter, after the business of the Company of dealing with color picture tubes and man power
supply also suffered setbacks in 2012-"13. Since, then all the efforts of the Company to revive its
business activities have not been successful for various factors including liquidity crunch. Your
Directors are seized of the matter and the Company is making efforts to explore the possibilities of
entering into development and manufacturing of electronic displays for use of Railways Industry
across the Golbe including Indian Railways.

Future Outlook

The Company was pioneer in bringing the display technology into India way back in 1980 by
manufacturing black & white picture tubes. Due to change in Technology from Black and white TV's
to Colour TV’'s and subsequently to latest Technologies like LED or OLED the Samtel Group/
Promoters went under Financial stress and could not do any Financial infusion in Samtel India
Limited.

The group companies have developed capability of developing display systems for multi usages like
railways and other applications. The market and demand for electronic displays in India is quite huge.
It is used in Airforce, defence railways & in Industry. Government of India is one of the largest
customer. Many of these products are being imported presently and the new policies including MAKE
IN INDIA supporting local manufacturing are expected to create huge demand for multi usages
display systems.

Considering the existing and future plans of Indian Railways, it is expected that the requirements of
displays and services related thereto will grow sharply and create big opportunity .

Samtel India Limited is planning to tap the demands of Indian Railway and gradually scale up its e
operations in Indian Railway display systems and other products.

Change in Nature of Business
There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

Material Events Occurring after Balance Sheet Date
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There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of financial year to which the balance sheet relates
and the date of this_Report.

Subsidiary Company & Associate Company

Your Company has no subsidiary or associate company. It is also not a subsidiary of any other
company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees Or Investments

The Company neither has made any investments nor has given any loans or guarantees or provided
any security during the year under review.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees, and Investment covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are
provided in Notes of the Financial Statement.

Fixed Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial period under review and as
such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding on the date of Balance Sheet.

Extract of Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereof are annexed herewith in the form of MGT 9 and
marked Annexure C.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company does not qualify for mandatory CSR activities in accordance with Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has not entered into any transaction as defined u/s 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with any Related Party during the financial year 2024-25. The Company has adequate policy and
mechanism to ensure that all Related Party Transactions that will be entered into by the Company
would be in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Risk Management

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements (LODR). It establishes
various levels of accountability and overview within the Company, while vesting responsibility for

each significant risk.

Internal Controls Systems and Adequacy

The Company has adequate internal control system commensurate with size and nature of its
business.
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Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 Mrs. Alka Kaura,
Director (DIN 00687365) is liable to retire by rotation at the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the
Company and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The Board recommends her re-
appointment. Brief resumes of Mrs. Alka Kaura have been provided as an Annexure to the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Bhalla (DIN: 07784556) and Mr. Dhruv Sethi (DIN: 08558395), are the
Independent Directors of the Company

Key Managerial Personnel (‘(KMP’)

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the KMPs of the Company:

Mr. Satish K Kaura - Managing Director
Ms. Divya Mittal- Company Secretary
Mr. Anurag Minhas- Chief Financial Officer

Governance Guidelines

The Company has adopted Governance Guidelines on Board Effectiveness. The Governance Guidelines
cover aspects related to composition and role of the Board, Chairman and Directors, Board diversity,
definition of independence, Director term, retirement age and Committees of the Board. It also covers
aspects relating to nomination, appointment, induction and development of Directors, Director
remuneration, Subsidiary oversight, Code of Conduct, Board Effectiveness Review and Mandates of
Board Committees.

Listing

The Equity Shares of the company were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, however, at
present the same stand delisted vide order dated 08th May 2024 of the Bombay Stock Exchange.
Aggrieved, the company preferred appeal before the Hon'ble Securities Appellate Tribunal. The
Hon'ble Tribunal vide its Order dated April 30, 2025 has directed the Company to make good all the
non-compliances to get its equity shares listed again on the Stock Exchange. The company has

already compiled with the directions of the Hon'ble Tribunal and your Directors are hopeful of re-
listing of the Equity shares of the Company during the current financial year.

Compliance of the Secretarial Standard issued by ICSI

The Board confirms that, during the period under review, the Company was following all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) as amended from
time to time.

Procedure for Nomination and Appointment Of Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for developing competency
requirements for the Board based on the industry and strategy of the Company. Board composition
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analysis reflects in-depth understanding of the Company, including its strategies, environment,

operations, financial condition and compliance requirements.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors in terms of provisions of Section 178
(3) of the Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 and as per the Listing Agreement.

Independence: In accordance with the above criteria, a Director will be considered as an ‘Independent
Director’ if he/ she meet with the criteria for ‘Independent Director’ as laid down in the Act and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations 2015 and as per the Listing Agreement.

Qualifications: A transparent Board nomination process is in place that encourages diversity of
thought, experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender. It is also ensured that the Board has
an appropriate blend of functional and industry expertise. While recommending the appointment of a
Director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers the manner in which the function
and domain expertise of the individual will contribute to the overall skill-domain mix of the Board.

Positive Attributes: In addition to the duties as prescribed under the Act, the Directors on the Board
of the Company are also expected to demonstrate high standards of ethical behavior, strong
interpersonal and communication skills and soundness of judgment. Independent Directors are also
expected to abide by the ‘Code for Independent Directors’ as outlined in Schedule IV to the Act.

Annual Evaluation of Board Performance and Performance of its Committees and of Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has undertaken
an evaluation of its own performance, the performance of its Committees and of all the individual
Directors based on various parameters relating to roles, responsibilities and obligations of the Board,
effectiveness of its functioning, contribution of Directors at meetings and the functioning of its
Committees. The Directors expresses their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board,
excluding the Director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed the
performance of the Board as a whole.

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has adopted the Insider Trading Policy of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to
time. The Insider Trading Policy of the Company lays down guidelines and procedure to be followed
and disclosure to be made while dealing with shares of the Company, as well as consequences of
violation. The Policy has been formulated to regulate, monitor and ensure reporting and maintain
highest ethical standards of dealing in Company securities.

Remuneration Policy

43



SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED — ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
At present the Managing Director of the Company does not draw any remuneration. None of the
Directors of the Company as an austerity measure receives any sitting fee or other emoluments.

Board and Committee Meetings

During the year under review the Directors of the Company met 6 times on 29th May, 2024, 3rd
July, 2024, 18th July, 2024, 14th August, 2024, 14th November 2024, and 14th February 2025.

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee comprised of 3 (three) Members out of which 2
(two) were Independent Directors and 1 (one) was a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. During
the year, 4 Audit Committee Meetings were held, details of which are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report.

There have been no instances during the year when recommendations of the Audit Committee were
not accepted by the Board.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (c) and 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to
the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there are no material departures;

(i) that the Company has selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the
Company for that period;

(iii) that the Company has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(iv) that the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(v) that proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been put in place
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

(vi) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws have been put in
place and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Action under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

As per the information available with the Company, your Directors state that during the year under
review, there were no applications or proceedings pending in the name of the Company under the
Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
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Material Changes Affecting the Company

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company between the end of the financial year and date of this report. Further, there has been no
change in the nature of business of the Company.

Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment At Workplace

The Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adequate
mechanism to address and act upon complaints, if any. It has formulated a policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the work place in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and
Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at work place. The
Company has set up an internal committee as mandated in the Act.

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2024-
25. Thus, no complaint is pending as on 31.03.2025.

Disclosure under Maternity Benefits Act, 1961

Your company complies with the provisions of Maternity Benefits Act, 1961. The Company has not
received any application/request for maternity leave from any women employees of the Company
during the year under review.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts

During the year under review nNo significant material orders have been passed by the Regulators or
Courts or Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future
operations.

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower/Vigil Mechanism Policy to provide Vigil Mechanism for
all concerned including Directors of the Company to report genuine concerns. The provisions of this
policy are in line with the provisions of Section 179(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Auditors & Audit Report

The current Statutory Auditors of the Company are M/s. R. Sharma & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (Regd. No. 003683), who have been appointed at the 40t Annual General Meeting to
hold office for a term of 5 years i.e. till conclusion of 45th Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark on the
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. The Notes on financial statements
referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any instances of frauds
committed in the Company by its officers or employees.

Secretarial Auditors
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Secretarial Audit for the financial year
2023-24 was carried out by Mr. Vinod Goyal of M/s V Goyal & Associates, New Delhi, a Company
Secretaries in Practice. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as Annexure B.

Explanations with regard to the observations/qualifications of the Auditors’ are as under :

As stated above, the Company has complied with the directions of the Hon'ble Securities Appellate
Tribunal (SAT) and the equity capital of the Company is expected to be re-listed by BSE Limited
during the current financial year.

Declaration under SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 & the Listing Agreement

All Directors of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board Members
and Senior Management executives for the period April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025.
Corporate Governance

Your Company has taken adequate steps to ensure compliance with the provisions of Corporate
Governance as prescribed under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 & the Listing Agreement with the
Stock Exchange.

A separate Report on Corporate Governance alongwith necessary Certificates and Report on
Management Discussion & Analysis are enclosed as part of this Annual Report.
Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report and the Report on Corporate Governance, as
required under & SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 & the Listing Agreement, forms part of the Annual
Report.

Statutory Disclosures

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified as per the provisions of Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013. All the Directors have made necessary disclosures as required under various
provisions of the Companies Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 & the Listing Agreement.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
and outgo stipulated under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of The Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed as Annexure C.

Particulars of Employees and Remuneration

None of the employees of the Company is in receipt of remuneration equal to or in excess of the
limits prescribed under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Extract of Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Act and Rule 12 (1) of the Companies (Management and
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Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
in MGT -9 is attached as “Annexure — to this Report.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors wish to thank all the stake holders of the Company for their continued support and
co-operation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd_

Satish K Kaura

Chairman & Managing Director
New Delhi

August 14, 2025
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ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM AOC.1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014]

Part“A”:Subsidiaries
Part “B": Associates

The Company does not have any subsidiary company.

ANNEXURE B TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025
Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014
To

The Members

SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED (THE COMPANY)

1212, 12t Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower,

Nehru Place,

New Delhi 110019

Company Registration No.: L31909DL1981PLC426653

1. We have conducted, the Secretarial Audit of compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
adherence to corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and accordingly expressing our opinion thereupon.

2. We have examined the registers, records, books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns
filed and other records as required to be maintained by the Company for the year ended
31.03.2025 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as ‘Act’) and Rules made there under and
various allied acts warranting compliance;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye - Laws framed thereunder;
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The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations,2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 1992

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR), Regulations, 2015

(Other regulations coming within domain of SEBI Regulations are not referred on account of NIL
transactions warranting compliance with those provisions; hence nothing is stated)

V..

Vi.

Vii.

(i)
(ii)

Vi.

No specific act governing operations is applicable, as the Company is not having any
operations, hence we have nothing to comment thereupon.

Other applicable laws including Labour Law like Factories Act, Payment of Gratuity Act etc.
(despite there being nil operations) , hence we have nothing to comment thereupon.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

We have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses of the following:
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company and
its officers during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025
complied with various statutory provisions and also that the Company has proper Board —
Processes and compliance — mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter :

maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries
therein;

forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with MCA;
service of documents by the Company;
notice of Board and various Committee meetings of Directors;

notice dispatch certified by the management and convening of Annual General Meeting held
on 30th September 2024,

minutes of Board, Committee and General Meetings;
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii

V.
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approvals of Board of Directors, Committee of Directors, Members and government
authorities, wherever required;

constitution of Board of Directors, Committees of Directors and appointment and
reappointment of Directors;

appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors;
report of the Board of Directors;
generally, other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules there under;

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter and also in line with applicable
clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSl). The Company has, in our opinion, Board-processes and compliance mechanism and
has complied with the applicable statutory provisions, Act, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc., mentioned above as stipulated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules made under the Act, and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company.

The Company does maintain website in compliance with said condition including various
disclosures/policies etc. that are required to be placed on official website of Listed Company.

We further report that:

the Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns
in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in other Companies and
interest in other entities;

the Company was not required to obtain any statutory approvals under provisions of various
Acts ;

The Company was earlier in receipt of show cause notice/communication from Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited in previous year regarding non-appointment of Company Secretary cum
Compliance officer, which was replied, and there was no further communication or imposition
of penalty by the Stock Exchange in this regard, hence we are unable to comment thereupon.
The Company was also in receipt of SCN from office of Registrar of Companies, Rajasthan at
Jaijpur for non-compliance with provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013
whereafter the appointment of CS cum KMP was made on 3¢ May 2019 and SCN replied too.
There was no further action from office of ROC, hence we cannot further comment upon same.

At present there is no Company Secretary on the role of the company, as Company Secretary
who has joined on 03.05.2019, has resigned from the post w.e.f 10.07.2024. The company
has initiated the reappointment of a Company Secretary and as on the date of signing of this
report the company has a Company Secretary who was appointed on 30 May, 2025.

We further report that during the year:

50



SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED — ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
The status of the Company was earlier a listed Company (listed on BSE and presently under delisted
w.e.f. 08.05.2025 after suspension) since the Company was generally regular in complying with
applicable provisions (Except for payment of listing Fee and non-filing of reports of Capital
Reconciliation for various quarters and delayed filing of results and shareholding pattern etc. with
stock exchanges on certain occasions). This fact has been examined from perusal of various records
maintained by the Company and official website of Bombay Stock Exchange. Furthermore, BSE has
delisted the shares after its suspended Shares of the Company citing various non compliances i.e
nonpayment of listing fee and noncompliance of certain provisions of LODR etc. Management
representatives has informed us that requisite remedial steps are being undertaken and thus our
report is qualified to the extent that till date the delisting has not been revoked. Beside BSE has vide
its order dated 05.01.2024 and advised company to comply by 05.05.2024 the conditions for
reinstatment of equity shares of the company on stock exchange, and on 08.05.2024 vide its public
notice the equity shares of the company have been delisted from the stock exchange. BSE has also
fixed the price of equity shares @ Rs. 2,85 per share to buy back by the company. Company
preferred an appeal before SAT of SEBI. The appeal was accepted and after proceeding before the
Hon’ble SAT, vide its order dated 30.04.2025 and direction has been given to the BSE and the
company that company will make compliance good and make the payment of outstanding due within
4 weeks so that BSE can take initiate to relist the equity of the company at BSE, and the appeal was
disposed off. The company has made compliances and payment of outstanding dues as per demand
notice of BSE. The legal deptt. of BSE has sought clarification by way of an application filed before
SAT wherein they had request for clear speaking order with regard to revoke of delisting and re-list
of equity shares of the company. Since the matter is pending before SAT of SEBI.

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

(i) Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Minutes and other secretarial
records are not maintained In accordance with Secretarial Standards.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company (nil operations) to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Vinod Goyal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Vinod Goyal

CP No.: 22384
FCS No.: 7231
Place: Delhi

Date: 13/08/2025
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Note: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and
forms an integral part of this report. This Report is limited to the Statutory Compliances on laws /
regulations / guidelines listed in our report of which, the due date has been ended/expired on or
before March 31, 2025 pertaining to Financial Year 2024-25
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Annexure A

To

The Members

Samtel India Limited (The Company)
1212, 12t Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower,
Nehru Place,

New Delhi 110019

Company No.: L31909DL1981PLC426653

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

e Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on such secretarial records and its
adequacy based on our audit.

e We have followed the audit practices and process and obtained and relied on the

confirmation from concerned departmental head, as we considered appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance on the correctness and completeness of the records. Our
verification was conducted on a test basis and wherever required detailed basis so as to
ensure that all entries/returns etc. have been made as per statutory requirements; we
believe that the processes and practices we followed for this purpose provided a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and
books of accounts of the Company and members are urged to rely upon Statutory
Auditors report on same.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation with respect to
applicability & compliance of laws, rules and regulations and of significant events during
the year.

The compliance of provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations,
and standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of secretarial and other records to the extent applicable to the Company.

The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management
is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.
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For Vinod Goyal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Vinod Goyal
CP No.: 22384
FCS No.: 7231

Place: Delhi
Date: 13/08/2025

ANNEXURE C TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

[Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i) Steps Taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy:

All the production/manufacturing operations of the Company have been shut down. Thus,
there has been no production activity during the year under review.

(i) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy: None
(iii) Capital Investment on Energy Conservation Equipment: None
(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
(i) Efforts made towards Technology Absorption:
There were no R & D activities carried out by the Company during the year under review.

(i) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

Since no R & D activities was carried out there have been no consequent benefits.

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year): None

(® the details of technology imported: The Company has not imported any technology during
the last three financial years.

(b) the year of import: Not Applicable
(o) whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable
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(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof:
Not Applicable

(iv)Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Rs. In Lacs
2024-25 2023-24
Capital expenditure Nil Nil
Revenue expenditure * Nil Nil
Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of net sales N/A N/A

© FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign
Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows:

Rs. in Lacs
2024-25 2023-24
1. Foreign Exchange Earned Nil Nil
2. Outgo of Foreign Exchange Nil Nil

ANNEXURE D TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. MGT.9 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN as on the financial year ended on 31st March,
2025 [Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 (1) of The Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

l. Registration and Other Details:

CIN L31909DL1981PLC426653

Registration Date 29t June, 1981

Samtel India Limited

Name of the Company
CIN: L31909DL1981PLC426653

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company / Limited by Shares

Address of the Registered Office and contact | 1212, 12th Floor, 43 Chiranjiv Tower,

details / Correspondence Address Nehru Place, New Delhi 110019.

Tel. No.: 91 11 40555700

Fax No.: 91 11 41555006
E-mail: _rkbhalla@samtelgroup.com

99



Website: www.samtelgroup.com

Whether listed company

Yes

Name, address and contact details of Registrar

& Transfer Agents (RTA), if any

MCS Share Transfer Agents Limited,
179-180, Dsidc Shed, 3rd Floor
Okhla Industrial Area, Phase -

New Delhi —110020
PhoneNo:011-41406149-51,
Fax:-011-41709881 ,

Email: admin@rmcsregistrars.com
Website:www.mcsregistrars.com,

CINNO.U67120WB2011PLC165872.

Il. Principal Business Activities of the Company

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be

stated:-

SI. | Name and Description of

No. | main products/services

NIC Code of the

Products/Services

% to total turnover

Of the Company

1. | Not Application

[ll. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies: Not Applicable

IV. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Category of Change
Shareholders during
the
Year
Demat Physical Total % of | Demat Physical Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual / HUF 4200 55166 59366 0.84 4200 55166 59366 0.84 (0]
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b) Central Govt. (o] o (o] (] (] (o] (] (o]
c) State Govt.(s) (0] (o] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (o]

. 1725562 1341557 3067119 43.27 172556 1341557 3067119 43.27
d) Bodies Corporate >
e) Banks / FI o 0 o (o] (o] o (o] o]
f) Any Other.... (o] (0] (] (o] (o] (o] (o] (o]
Sub-Total (A)(1): 1729762 1396723 3126485 44.11 1729762 1396723 3126485 4411
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs — Individuals (0] (0] 0] 0] 0] (0] (0] (o]
b) Other -

(0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0]

Individuals
c) Bodies Corporate (o] o (o] (o] (o] (o] (o] (o]
d) Banks / FI (o] 0 (o] (o] (o] 0 (o] (o]
e) Any Other.... (o] o (0] (o] (0] (0] (] o
Sub-Total (A)2): o (0] o o o (0] o o
Total Shareholding
of Promoters (A) = | 1729762 1396723 3126485 44.11 1729762 1396723 3126485 4411
@) ()+AX2)
B. Public
Shareholding
1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds / | 3900 1530 5430 0.08 3900 1530 5430 0.08
uTI
b) Banks / FI 353 345008 345361 4.87 353 345361 345361 4.87
c) Central Govt. (0] o (o] (o] (o] (0] (o] (]
d) State Govt.(s) (0] (0] (0] 0] (0] (0] (0] (0]
e) Venture Capital | O (o] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0]
Funds
f ) Insurance | O (o] (o] (o] (o] (o] (o] (o]
Companies
g) Flls (o] 585 585 0.01 (o] 585 585 0.01
h) Foreign Venture | O o (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0]
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) (0] (0] 0] 0] 0] (0] (0] (o]
Foreign Portfolio (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0]
Investors (Corporate) | O (o] (o] (o] (o] (0] (o] (o]
Sub-Total (B)(1): 4253 346538 351376 4.96 4253 346538 351376 4.96

(2) Non-Institutions
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a) Bodies Corporate

i) Indian 1161449 32250 1193699 16.84 1161449 32250 1193699 16.84
i) Overseas (0] 414349 414349 5.85 (0] 414349 414349 5.85
b) Individuals

i) Individual

Shareholders
holding nominal | 952929 460361 1413290 19.94 952929 | 460361 1413290 19.94
share capital upto °
2 lakh

ii) Individual
Shareholders
holding nominal | 367064 (o] 367064 5.18 367064 | O 367064 5.18
share capital in
excess of * 2 lakh

c) Others (specify)

] ) 145634 24661 170295 2.40 145634 | 24661 170295 2.40
Non Resident Indians
Trusts /HUF/Clearing

51074 311 51385 0.72 51074 311 51385 0.72
Members
Sub-Total (B)(2): 2678150 931932 3610082 50.93 2678150 | 931932 3610082 50.93
Total Public
Shareholding(B)=(B)
1)+(B)?2) 2682403 1278470 3961458 55.89 2682403 | 1278470 3961458 55.89
C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDR &
ADRs (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (0]
Grand Total (A+B+C) | 4424876 2663067 7087943 100 4410825 | 2677118 7087943 100
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters : As above

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) : No.

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top Shareholders having 1% above (Other than Directors/Promoters):

Sr. | Name of the shareholder Number of | Shares as a percentage of total
No. shares number of shares

1 VISTRA ITCL (INDIA) LTD. 673441 9.50

2 PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK 343989 4.85

3 FAME MERCANTILE PVT. LTD 342093 4.92

4 | URMIL MAHASUKH GOPANI 140721 1.99




5 RHODE ISLE LIMITED 99304 1.40
6 | SUPRAKASH MUKHERJEA 138691 1.96
7 PROTAIRE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 297845 4.20
Total 2036084 | 28.82
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Shareholding at the | Changes Cumulative
For Each of the beginning of the year Shareholding
Directors
during the year
No. of | % of total Increase/ % of total
shares shares of | Date Decrease | Reason shares of
the No. of the
company shares Company
Mr. Satish K Kaura 38067 0.54 NIL NIL NIL 38067 | 0.54
Mr. Dhruv Sethi o o - - - o o
Mrs. Alka Kaura 8273 0.12 - - - 8273 0.12
Mr. Rajesh Bhalla o o o o 0 0 0

V. Indebtedness :

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Secured Unsecured | Deposits | Total
Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount - 8.81 8.81
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -
Total (i + ii+ iii) - 8.81 8.81
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
Addition - - -
Reduction - 0.50 0.50
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Net Change - 0.50 0.50

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount - 8.31 8.31

i) Interest due but not paid - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due -

Total (i + i+ iii) - 8.31 8.31

VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration to Mr. Satish K Kaura:

Sl Particulars of Remuneration Managing
No Director &
CEO
1| Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 0
1961
(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (0]
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 o
Stock Options o
3 Sweat Equity 0]
4 | Commission 0
- as % of profit o
- others, specify....(Performance based) (Refer Note) o
5. | Others, please specify o
Total o
Ceiling as per the Act Nil

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NONE
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* INDEPENDENT AU DITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of MIS SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the stanaalone financial statements of M/s SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED (“the Company”),
which comprises of the Balance Shest as at March 31, 2025 the Statement of Profit and Loss ( including
Other Comprehensive Income ), Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended, Statement of Changes in
Equity and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (herein referred to as “the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements).

In our opinion and to the hest of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including
indian Accounting Standards (‘'Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs
{financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its joss including other comprehensive loss
and its cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters aré those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as

a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate_opinion on

these matters.

# \FRN : 003683N
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Sr.No. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response ]
1 Going Concern Baslis: We draw attention| Our audit included assessing the company's
to Note {XI} in the Notes to Accounts, which| ability to continue as a going concern,

discusses the preparation of the financial including reviewing  the company's|
statements on a going concern basis. operational status and financial forecasts.
We evaluated the assumptions and factors|
considered by the management  and
concluded that the company's address and
operational viability are appropriate. Our
opinion is not qualified in respect of this
matter.

2 Evaluation of Uncertain Tax Positions:We focused on this area due to the complexity
Refer to Note (Il1) in the Notes to Accountsiand judgment involved in assessing tax
for details on the evaluation of uncertain taxjiabilities and contingencies

positions. Our procedures included reviewing the

ompany's assessment of uncertain tax
positions and consulting with tax experts 1o
valuate the potential impact on the financia
statements. Based on our findings, we are
satisfied that the disclosures related to these
tax positions are appropriate.

3 Delisting of Shares: As described in Note| We reviewed the relevant documentation and
{l) in the Notes to Accouﬁls, the company's| the impact of the delisting on the financial
shares were delisted from the Bombay| statements. We determined that the financial
Stock Exchange Limited on May 8, 2024, statements appropriately reflect the delisting
This delisting has implications for the| and its implications.

company's equity structure and market
presence

£y
%]
('3
“
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4 Rectification of Prior Period - We reviewed the documentation supporting
Investment in Samtel Glass Limited: the sale transaction. We evaluated the
Refer to Note VII in the Notes to Accounts correction of the prior period error and it
-The Company had divested its entire treatment in accordance with Ind AS 8 -
holding of 32,00,000 equity shares of 210| Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
each in Samtel Glass Limited at a sale Estimates and Errors. We concluded that thej
consideration of ¥1.34 per share, rectification  has  been  appropriately
aggregating to 42.88 lakhs, in earlien accounted for and disclosed in the financial
financial years. However, the transaction| statements.

was not accounted for in books
inadvertently in earlier years and the same

has been accounted for in the current year.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis , Board's Report
including Annexures to the Board's Report , Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's information , but does not include Standalone financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If , based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to communicate that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard .

10159, Padam Singh Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi
‘ ' " , elhi- 110005
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standaione Financial

Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appfopriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
- Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report thatincludes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing wil always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

10159, Padam Singh Road, Karol Bagh, New Dethi-110005
Phone : 2875 3751, 2875 8991, 41748991 E-mail - ca.raksh19@gmail.com
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going ~ concem.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modity
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in

a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate , makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning and scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work ;and {ji) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
the standalone financial statements

New Delhi /-:" /
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our report we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other Comprehensive Income,,
Statement of changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

{(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(i) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in " Annexure A % . Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone

financial statements.

{g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of the Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended

In our opinion and to the pest of our information and according to the explanation given to us, no
remuneration is paid by the Company to its Directors during the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March
31, 2025 to the notes to financial statements, if any.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2025.

i. There were no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

iv {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
disclosed in Note 8 to the Standalone Finaﬁcial Statements , no funds { which are material
either individually orin aggregate) have been advanced or loaned of invested

( either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or kind of funds ) by the
company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”) . with
the understanding , whether recorded in writing or otherwise , that the intermediary shall ,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company  {"Ultimate Beneficiaries “) or provide any
guarantee , security or the like on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries ;

F = I
- u{
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(b} The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (
which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity {"Funding Parties”}, with the understanding
. whether recorded in wriling or otherwise , that the Company shall , whether, directly or
indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries "} or provide any guarantee , security
or the like on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries ;

(c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub — clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) , as provided under {a) and (b)

above , contain any material misstatement.

v There is no dividend dectared or paid during the year by the Company during the year, hence
provisions of Section 123 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

vi Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (dit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

2. Asrequired by the Companies ( Auditor's Report } Order 2020 ( the “Order" ) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “ Annexure B “ a statement on the

matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

For R. Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
F.R No. 003683N

o
Rakesh Sh;ma

{Partner)

Membership No: 082640
UDIN: 25082640BMIQCI2829

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 29, 2025
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if.

“"ANNEXURE B ” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

{ Reffered to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of
our Report to the members of Samtel India Ltd of even date )

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company Mis
SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED and according to the books of account and records examined by us in normal
course of audit ,on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, we report that

a) The company is not owning any Property, Plant & Equipment according to the information and

explanation given to us.

b) The said clause is not applicable to the Company in view of that the company do not own any

Property, Plant and Equipment.

a)The said clause is not applicable to the Company in view of that the Company do not own any
Property , Plant and Equipment..

b) The said clause is not applicable to the Company in view of that the Company do not own any
Property , Plant and Equipment.

e) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made there under.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not carry out any
manufacturing or Trading activities. There were no Inventories held by the Company at any point of

time.

b) As explained to us, during any point of time of the year the Company has not been sanctioned any
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fii.

iv,

Vi,

i } AsExplained to us the Company has given unsecured Loan to related parties amounting to

Rs. 43,42,389.00 during the year The closing balance on 31.3.2025 is as follows:

S.No | Name of Related party Balance as on 31.3.2025
(Amount in INR)

1 Kaura Poperties Pvt Ltd 2,16,809.00

2 Samtel Avionics-Ltd 3,23,99,109.00

3 Samtel Glass Ltd. 28,04,946.00

4 Navketan Mercantile Pvt Ltd. 42,88,389.00

These loans are to related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. There are no terms and
conditions of these loans, including their repayment and interest which have been reviewed. In our
opinion these loans are prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the company. The company has not
granted any loans to companies or other parties which are not covered under the definition of ‘related
party' under the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of
representation of the management which we have relied upon , the loans given by the company during
the financial year 2024-2025 are not in compliance with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the

Companies Act 2013 .

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits
or any amounts that are deemed to be deposits under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India to which the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of Companies Act, 2013 apply.

According to the information and explanation given to us, Company is not required to prepare and
maintain cost records as prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148

of the Companies Act 2013.

a) The company is generally irregular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Service Tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs , duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable
to it. Further there are undisputed amounts payable in respect Provident Fund by Rs.10,20,790/- [ESI
Rs.401,284/- , Service Tax including Cess by Rs.14,66,332/- , Tax deducted at Source by
Rs.3,58,070/- , and Interest on Statutory dues by Rs. 82,18,528/- thereof were outstanding at the year-
end for a period more than six months from the date they became payable.
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b} According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the company examined
by us , the dues of Income Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as

under :
Related To Authority where Financial Disputed Paid under
Pending Year Amount Protest
Income Tax Income Tax Appellate [2005-06 ---
- ~ |(Tribupal | | 43009000
Income Tax Income Tax Appellate |2007-08 28,817,000.00 -
Tribunal

vii.  There are no amounts that are in the nature of undisclosed transactions or amounts surrendered as
fncome in assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

vili.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the company, the company has not defauited in repayment of loan or borrowing from any financial
institution or bank or dues to debenture holders. |

ix.  a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans raised during the year were applied for the purpose for which those
were raised.

b) According fo the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year

XF) Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year under audit.

Xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

a Nidhi company, hence clause {xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii}  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the provisions
of section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such transactions have been

disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

10159, Padam Singh Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi- 110005
Phone : 2875 3751, 2875 8991, 41748991 E-mail - ca.raksh19@gmail.com



R. SHARMA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

\

xiv)  a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
an adequate internal audit system which commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) Section 138 of The Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the company for the
financial year and hence there is no requirement of appointment of Internal auditors.

Xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Therefore, provisions of clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order

are not applicable to the Company.

xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-a of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934.
xvii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has incurred cash losses

in the current and immediately preceding financial year,
xviit)  There has been no instance of any resignation of Statutory Auditors occurred during the year.

xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of our audit report that company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period

of one year from the balance sheet date.

XX) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is to no pending amount which is
required to be fransferred to a fund specified in Schedule VI of the companies Act within a period
of six months of the expiry of the financial year in com pliance with second proviso to sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the said Act;
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xxi)  The company does not have any subsidiaries, associate, or joint ventures the accounts of which
are to be consolidated and as such there are no consolidated financial statements.

For R. Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FR No. 003683N

e
QL=
Rak Sharma

{Partner)
Membership No: 082640
UDIN: 25082640BMIQCI2829

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

{ Reffered to paragraph 1 (f} under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of
our report to the members of Samtel India Ltd. of even date )

Report on the Internai Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“ the Act*)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended as at that date.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged With Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,

2013,
Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls

Our responsibility is t0 express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over the financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICA! and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether

%\ FRN : 003683N)
G\ New DEH\/l//
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adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial contro! over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,

{(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorities of management and

directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of the internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of the changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has ,in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial confrols system over financial reporting and they were
operating effectively as at 31.03.2025., based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporiing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India..

For R. Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FR No. 003683N

we

Rakesh Sharma

(Partner)

Membership No: 082640
UDIN: 25082640BMIQC12829

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

( Reffered to paragraph 1 (f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of
our report to the members of samtel India Ltd. of even date )

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act,2013 (* the Act )

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended as at that date.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged With Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensu ring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,

2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over the financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether
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adequate internal financial controls over finangial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,

{2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorities of management and

directors of the company; and

{3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of the internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial repotting may become inadequate because of the changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has ,in alf
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and they were
operating effectively as at 31.03.2025., based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Inslitute of

Charfered Accounfants of india..

For R. Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FR No. 003683N

Rakesh Sharma

(Partner)

Membership No: 082640
UDIN: 25082640BMIQCI2829

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 29, 2025
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD
CIN:L31909DL1981PLCA26653
Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2025

{ All amounts in Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

In terms of our report attached

For R. Sharma & Assoclates

Particutars Notes | As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
A ASSETS
1 |Non- Curvent Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets 1 B
Capital Work-in-Progress -
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2 - -
Non Current Investment 3 - 42,33
Other Non-Current Assets 4 0.08 0.19
Total Non - Current Assets 0.08 43.07
2 |Current Assets
Financial Assets
{i} Trade Receivables 5 - -
{ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 5.27 5.80
{iii) Bank Balances other than {ii} above [ 0.70 0.70
{iv) Other Financial Assets 7 011 0.07
Other Current Assets 8 452.24 424.11
Total Current Assets 458.32 430,68
Total Assets {1+2) 458.40 473,75
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
Equity Share Capital 9 708.42 700.42
Other Equity 10 {522.94) {512.46)
Equity attributable to Owners of the Company (1) 185.48 195.96
Non-Controlling Interests (Il -
Total Equity {1+01) 185.48 195.96
2 |LIABILITIES
Current Llabilities
Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 11 831 8.1
{ii} Trade Payables 12 - -
Other Current Liabilities 13 264.61 268.98
Total Current Liabilities 272.92 172.79
Total Equity and Liabilities (1+2) 458.40 473.75
Notes on accounts are forming part of the Financlat Statements 19

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 3N
P Pos o Tulln DX
Q_ﬁm/ ,],L.L EL&‘( ;’-\: WA e / 2
RA HARMA SATISH K KAURA / RAJESH K. BHALLA ANURAG MANMAS
Partner {Director) {Director) {C.F.0.}
DIN 00011202 DIN 07784556
Membership No. 082640
Place : NEW DELHI
|Date 1 - 29.05.2025
L []
-+ -
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD
CIN:L319090L1981PLCA26653

Statemnent of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31st, 2025

{ AH amounts in Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otharwise stated)

Non Controlling Interests

I Year ended Year ended
pasticulary Notes| march31,2025 |  March31, 2024
Continuing Operations
rRevenue fram Operations 14 0.50 -
Other Intome 15 14.63 4245
Total Revenue 15.13 4245
|EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consurmed 16 - -
Purchases of Finished, Semi-Finished and other Products - -
Changes in Stock of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade - -
Employee Benefit Expense 0.60 2.38
Finance Costs 17 5.55 5.33
Impairment Expenses / Losses - =
Other Expenses 18 19.27 36.99
|Expenditure Capitalised = =
Total Expenses 25.42 44.70
|Profit/(Loss) Before Tax {10.29) {2.25)
Tax Expense

{1} Current Tax - -

{2} Deferred Tax - -

{3} Income Tax of Earliers Years 0.19 -
Total Tax Expanse 0.19 -
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (10.48) {2.25)
Profit/(Loss) After Tax from Discontinued Operations - -
Profit/{Loss) for tha Year {10.48)| {2.25)
Profit/(Loss) for the Period Attributable to:
Owners of the Company {10.48} (2.25)
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(i}

{ii)

(1} Baslc

Other Comprehensive Incomea

Total Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
{Comprising Profit {Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year}

Earnings per Equity Shara (for Continulng Operation):

{2} Diluted

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

{3} Changes In Revaluation Surplus

{b} Remeasurements of the Defined Benefit Plans

{¢} Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive
Income

{d) Fair Value Changes relating to Own Credit Risk o

Financial Liabilitles Designated at Fair VWalue through
Profit or Loss

Income Tax relating to ems that will not be reclassified
to Profit or Loss

Iterns that may be reclassified to Profit or Loss

{a) Exchange Differences in Translating the Financial
Statements of Foreign Operations

{b) Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive
Income

{c} Effective Portion of Gains and Loss on Designated
Portion of Hedging Instruments in a Cash Flow Hedge

{d} Fair Value Ggin/ {Loss) on Time Value of Option and
Forward Elerments of Forward Contracts in Hedging]
Relationship

(@] Others
Income Tax on (tems that may be reclassified to Profit or|
Loss

{10.48) {2.25)
(0.015) (0.003)
{0.015) {0.003)

Notes on actounts are forming part of tha Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached.

For R, Sharma & Associates

Chartered Accountants
FAN : 003683N_ \\ psr

Quasce””

Partner

Membership No. 032640

{Clrector)
DIN 00011202

19

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Place : NEW DELHI
Date: 29.05.202%

(Director)
DIN 07784556

20

V’rl- =
LLL )C:w/xi < o
SATISH K KAURA ,..RAJESI-I K. BHALLA

ANURAG MANHAS
(C.F.0)
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SAMTEL INDiA LTD

CIN:L319090L1981PLCA26653

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31st 2025

{ All amounts in Rs, LACS axcept share and par share date and where otherwise stated)

Particulars Year anded Year anded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year (10.48) [2.25)
Adjustments for:
In¢ome tax expense recognised in profit or loss 0.19
Share of profit of associates - -
Share of profit of a joint venture ] -
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 5.55 533
Investment income recognised in profit or boss e -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Transfer to General Reserve
Interest Income
Gain on disposal of interest in former associate
Het (gain)/lass recorded in profit or loss on financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Net (gain)/loss arising on investment measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Gain arising on effective settlement of begal claim - -
a7 3.08
{Increase}fdecrease in ather Non Current Assets
Movements in working capital:
{Increase)/decrease in other assets 128.04) 5.15
Decrease in trade and other payables - -
{Decreaselfincrease in other liabilities (4.38) (40.35)
Cash generated from operations (32.92] {35.20)
Income taxes paid 0.19 -
Net cash generated by operating activities {37.86) [32.12)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received -
Sale of Investments 42.88
Net cash {used in)/generated by investing activities 42.88 -
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid / Interest received (5.55} {5.33|
Met cash used in financing activities (5.55) {5.33)
Net Increasa in cash and cash equivalents {0.53) {37.45)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6.50 43.95
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in
fareign currencies
Cash and cash equivalants at the end of the year 5.97 £.50
Notes on accounts are forming paert of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report attached.
For R. Sharma & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN : DO3683N v S }L | I
Z7 N >
Qe Jdot Gup 2NN
RAKESH ST SATISH K KAURA  RAJESHK.BHALLA  ANURAG MANHAS
Partner {Director] {Director) {C.F.0}
DIN 00011202 GIN 07784556
Membership No. 082640
Place : NEW DELHI
Date : 29.05.2025
» [
+ "
+ »
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD

CIN:L319090L1981PLCA26653

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

{ All amaunts in Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

a. Equity $hare Capital

Particulars Number of Shares Equity Share Capital

Issued and Pald up Capital at April 01, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the Current Reporting Pertod 7,087,943 708.42
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Resatated balance at the beginning of the Current Reporting
Period

Changes In Equity Share Capital during the current year - =
Balance at the end of the Current Reporting Period * 7,087,943 708.42

7,087,943 708.42

Balance at April 01, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the previous reporting period 7,087,943 708.42
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Resatated balance at the beginning of the previous reporting
period

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the previous year - -
|Balance at the end of the Last Reporting Period 7,087,943 708.42

7,087,543 708.42

* In pursuant to the public notice dated 06.05.2024 issued by BSE Ltd. the equity share of the company that have remained
suspended for more than 6 months has been delisted from the platform of the Exchange, with effect from May 08, 2024 in
compliance of the order of the Delisting Committee of the Exchange. The said delisting has been carried out in terms of Securitles
and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares} Regulations, 2021 {"Regulations”).

b. Other Equity

|Reserves and Surplus  |Reserves and Surplus
Securitias Premium Retained Earnings _

IParticulars Total

Balance at April 01, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the Current Reporting Pericd - {512.46) (512.46)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - -

Resatated balance at the beginning of the Current Reporting

|Periad - {512 .46} {512.46)
Total Comprehensive income for the current year - {10.48) {10.48)
Dividends - - -
Transfer to Retained Earnings - {522.94) {522.94})
Any other change - - -
Balance at the end of the Current Reporting Period - {522.94) (522.94)

|Balance at April 01, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the Previous Reporting Period - {510.21) {510.21)|

Changes in accounting policy or prior pericd errors - - -
Resatated balance at the beginning of the previous fRleporting

Period - {510.21) (510.21)
Total Comprehensive income for the previous year - {2.25) (2.25)
Dividends C 9 =
Transfer to Retained Eamings - {512.48) {512.46)
Any other change - - -
Balance at the end of the Last Reporting Period - (512.46) (512.46)

) FRN : 003887
Mew Dt |
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Motes forrabng part of tha Mnandal statemaents a8 st March ¥ist, 2025

{ AN samounka In R, LACS except shale snd per shara dota and whars otharwiss stated)

Nots Mo. 1- Tengible Assets

At

Camying unount March 31, 2025

As ot
Wharch 31, 2034

Pulldings - Laatehold
Plant B Equipments.
Office Equipmsnt
Computers
Furnipure and Fixiures
(Capitel Work m progress

[Total -

Pt vl

Toiml

ibucrbﬂnndm

Phasvt amd

Total

. d Depreciation and Impal
Balanca as st Agell 01, 2024 - -
Depreciation / A Expanza for the year - -
IEInﬂnahedooDhmldm .
by through Business Combi -
|Balance ax m March 31, 1925 -

Batewce a4 wt Aprll 0, 2013 - .
Depreciation f Amorttaation Expense for the year - .
Eliminated on Disposal of Assats -
Acquishiions through Business Combinations -
Ilillnu u3 ot Mharch 31, 014 =

|fmmm i
(Balanct 54 ot April 0], 2024 - -
Additions - -
Digprosals . =
Acquisitions through Busk Lo - -
Depredation Exqsense . .
Balance & of Muerch 31, 2025 - =

Balance st ot A 01, 2023 3 %
Additlons - -
Dhsposaks s

Plast wmd

Totel

Balarce ns at March 34, 2035 - -

Balance of Capital Work in Progress as at April 01, 2023 - ®
|Additions - 2
Disposals . ]
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - -

1 00366IN
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SAMTEL INDIALTD
CIN:L319090L1901 PLCATE65

Notes f wg part of the finandal

as st Macrh J1st, 2028

{ Al amounts n Ry, LACS axcepd thare and per share data and white othenwise ctated)

Mot Ne. 2 -
2 Deferred Tax Balants

Partieulars

Daferred Tan Assais
Defarrad Tan Lisbithes

March 31, 2024

Total

2004-25

i

Racogniesd In
Profit of Lot

facognized In

Comprehenshes
Income

Dirsctly In Equity s

Redassified from
Tquity bo Prafit

Closing Balance

Deferred Tax {Uabllities)/Assats in relation to

Cost & Estimated Earmings in Excass of Billings
War on Cost

Depreciation & Amortiteton

Emphoyes Beneflt Expanse

Others {Carry Forward Businass Losses)

Total

Z023-24

Opening
Balance

Recognisad In
Profit or Loss

Recognised tn
Other

Recognized

Divactly b Equity

Reciasaifiad from
Equity to Profit
or Loss

Closing Batanca

o d Tax {Uabillties)/, 1z in refation to

Cost & Estimated Earnings In Excess of Billings
War on Cost

Deprecliation & Amortization

Employes Benafit Enpanse

Dthars {Carry Forward Business Losses|

[Tatal

b. Current Tan Asssts snd Uiabilities

Particulars

Asat

March 31, 2025 |

Current Tax Liabillitles
Income Tax Payable
Advonce Incoms Tan

Total

86



¢~ Income Taxes Expense

Yaur anded
March 31, 2028

Cusrent Tax
In raspact of tha Current Year{MAT)
In raspaet of Prior Years

|Daferred Tan
Iy respact of thr Curment Year
In respect of Prior Years

Your anded
| ddurch 31,2024 |

Total Tax

e

Tha income Tax for the year can be fled to the

g Profik as follows

Partioslary

Prafit Befans Tax from Continuing Opatations

" Tax R —

Effect of Expensas that ara not deductible in determining Taxable
Profit

Effect of DHffarent Tax rites of Subsidkarfes Oparating In ather
Jurisdictions

Cthers

Adjustments Recognised ln the Currant Year In ralation to the
Currend Tax of Prior Years

Tax Exp Recognised in Profit or Loss
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD
CIN:L31909DL1981PLCA26653

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
{ All amounts in Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Note No. 3 - Investments

Particulars As at As at
ko March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Quoted
Samtel Color Limited 473.70 473.70
59,22,900 ( previous year 59,22,900) equity shares of Rs.
10/-each fully paid
Less Provision for Diminution (473.70) (473.70)
Sub Total - -
Un-Quoted
1), Samtel Glass Limited 555.00 555.00
32,00,000{ previous year 32,00,000} equity shares of Rs.
10/-each fully paid
Less: Provision for Diminution (512.12}) (512.12)
JLess: 32,00,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10/-each (42.88) i
sold to Navketan Mercantile Pvt Limited @ Rs. 1.34/ each '
Sub Total - 42.88
Total - 42.88
Note No. 4 - Other Non Current Assets
As at As at
T March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Capital Advance 5 -
Balance with Government Authority:
a) Security Deposit with Labour Court - -
b) TDS Recoverable 0.08 0.19
Total 0.08 0.19




SAMTEL INDIA LTD
CIN:L319050L1981PLCA26653

Notes forming part of the financlal statements as at March 31, 2025
[ AN amounts In Rs. LACS except shere and per share data and where otherwise stated}

Note No. S - Trade Receivables

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Trade Receivables & Other Recelvables
(a) Secured, Considered Good

(b} Unsecured, Consldered Good

(c) Doubtful

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

Total

Trade Recehables ageing schedule
Outstanding as on 31.03.2025

Particulars

Outstanding for folowing periods from due date of Payment

Amount

Months

Less than 6| 6 Months - 1

‘l'_g_l‘

1-2 Years

-3 Years

More than 3
Years

{i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good
{ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful

(i1} Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtfut

Qutstanding as on 31.03.2024

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment

Less than §

| Months

6 Months - 1
Year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3
Years

(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good
{il} Undisputed Trade Recelvables - considered doubtful

(iii} Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful

Note No. 6 Cash and Bank Balances

IPartIculars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Current Cash and Bank Balances
|Balances with Banks
Cash on Hand

5.27

5.80

Total

5.27

Bank Balances other than above

IParticulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Deposits held as Margin Money/ Security for Bank Guarantees

0.70

0.70

Total

0.70

0.70
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD
CIN:L31909DL1981PLC426653

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
{ Al amounts in Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Note No. 7 - Other Financial Assets

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Current

Unbilled Revenue

Interest accured on Deposits
Secuity Deposits

0.11

0.07

Total

0.11

0.07

Note No. 8- Other Current Assets

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Current Assets
Advances:

Other *

Advances to Employees
Balance with Government Authority
{a) Secured, Considered Good
{b) Unsecured, Considered Good
{c) Doubtful

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts
{d) GST Input
Others *

52.65

2.50
397.09

52.65

=t

1.10
370.36

Total Other Current Assets

452.24

424.11

* Others include Rs. 323.99 lacs to M/s Samtel Avionics Limited (Previous year Rs. 330.19 lacs) , Rs.
2.17 lacs to M/s Kaura Properties Pvt. Limited (Previous year Rs. 2.17 lacs) , Rs. 28.05 lacs to M/s
Samtel Glass Limited (Previous year Rs. 38.00 lacs) , Rs.42.88 lacs to Navketan Mercantile Pvt Ltd. (
Previous Year Nil) and Rs. 52,65 Lacs to Amberley Estates Private Limited (Previous Year Rs. 52.65

Lacs).
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD

ANAILINIDLLISIPLLAZEESS

Notas forming part of the financlsl statements &2 st March 31, 2025

{ AN amounts In Ry. LACS except share and per share deta and whene ctharwise stated)

Note Mo. 9 - Equity Share Caphtal

i mna:% Muc:‘i: 2024

Total Equity Share Capltal 1,000.00 1,000.00
10000 | 100000

Authorised Shere Capital : 1,000.00 1,000.00

(spued and Swbsiribed Capital Comprisws : * 708.42 708.42

Total Equity Share Capital 708,42 FORAL

9.1 Pald up Equity Shares

particulars Humber of Share Capital

shaces {Amount) |

Byl at April 01, 2024
Fully Paid up Equity Shares outstanding ot tha beginning of the period

70,584,534 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 7,080,534 FOR.05
Ad|ustemants during the year - <
Fully Pald up Equity Shars cutstanding at the clossing of the periad 7,080,534 A5
Partly Pald up Equlty Shares cutstanding at the beginning of the peciad

7,403 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 sach, Rs. 5 paid up 7408 Qa7
Adjustaments during the year i N
Fully Faid up Equity Shares outstanding at tha clossing of the peried 7,408 0.3r
Balance as at March 31, 2028 7,087,545 T08.42 |

Balance at April 01,2023
Fully Pakd up Equity Shares cutstanding at the baginning of the period

74,84,534 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 sach fully paid up 7,080,534 F0R.05
Adjustemants during the year - -
Fully Paid up Equity Shares outstanding at the clossing of the period 7,090,534 104.05

Partly Pald up Equity Shares cutstanding at the beginning of the parlod

7,409 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 sach, As. 5 paid up FA09 037
Adjusternants during the yaar - -

Fully Paid up Equity Shares outstanding at tha clossing of the perfod 1409 0.37
Balanca as at 31 Merch, 2024 7,087,943 708.42

9,2 Detalls of Shares held by Promatars

As at March 31, 2025 AsatMarch 31,2024 |

Particulacs Nurmibar of % hokding of % change Humbar of % holding of
Sharws hald uity Shares | during the year Shawas hald Equity Shares

Fully Paid Equity Shanes
{1) Promoters and Associstes
Satish K Kaura 33,087 0.54% L1 38,067 0.54%
Adka Kaura 82713 0.12% Nil 8173 0.12%
Punsest Kaura 172 0.00%) Nil 172 Q.
Veod Pal Kaura 12,854 0.12% Nil 12,854 0.1
Kaurs Properties Pvt Ltd, 2,350 0.03% Nil 2,350 0.03%)
Paramount CapFin Laase Pyt Lid. 32,754 QA6% L} 32,754 0.44%)
Samtel Machines & Projects Ltd 1.433,344 20.22% HK 1,433,344¢ 20.22%
Samtal Avionics Lid 261,559 1.60% Hil 161,859 2.69%)
Samntal Color Ltd 1,336,812 18.86% Nil 1,336,812 15.96%
{2) Bon-Resident indlans 167,202 2.36% Nil 167,202 2.36%
[3) Ovarieas Bodins Corporates 414,349 5.85% Hil 414,349 5.85%
(8) Mutual Fund and UTI 5,430 0.08% Nil 5430 0.05%|
{5) FlIs 585 0.01%: Nif 585 0.01%)
(6) Banks f Financial institutions / Insurance Cot. 14,703 4.86% il 344,703 4.96%
{7 Indian Bodies Corporntes 1,343,616 18.95% il 1,393,616 18.95%
{8} Indtan Pub¥ic 1,635,499 23.78% Nil 1,685,499 23.78%
E!Tmm 74 0.00%, Hil 74 D.00%
Total 7,087,943 100.00% 7,087,943 100.00%
= In pursuant to the public notice dated 06.05.2024 Issuad by BSE Ltd, the squity shara of the that have ined ded Far more
than 6 months has besn delisted from the platform of the Exchangs, with effect from May 08, 2024 in compliance of the order of the Delisting
& ittas of the Exchange. Tha sald delisting has been ‘earried out in terms of Sacurities and Exchange Board of India {Deflsting of Equity Shares)
Regulati 2021 ["Reg ). The pany has praf an sppedl against tha dclbﬂnc order dated 05.05.2024 before Hen'ble SAT and in
lst date of haaring 29/04/25 the company has bean directed to fie fComplate al plk within dweeks with BSE Ltd. to enabla

them to conskder for revocation of delising / re-list of equity sharm of the company at their swck wuchange.
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD
CIN:L31909D11981PLCA26653

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
{ All amounts In Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Note No. 10 - Other Equity

Particulars Ag st -
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Retained Earnings :
Balance at Beginning of Year (512.46) {510.21)
Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company {10.48) (2.25)
General Reserve = x
Balance at the End of Period {522.94)| {512.46)
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD

CIN:L31909DL1981PLCA26653
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
{ All amounts In Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Note No. 11 - Current Borrowings

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2023

a)

|b)

Unsecured Short Term Borrowings :
Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks {Bank Overdraft)
From Others
Loans from Related Parties

Total




SAMTEL INDIA LTD

CIN:LIL90IDL19BLPLEAL6653

Notes forming part of the inancial statements as 3t March 31, 2025

{ Al amounts in Re. LACS ancept share and par share data and where otherwise stated)

Note No. 12 - Trade Payables

Asat As 3k
Particul
— March 31, 2025 | March 33, 2024
Trade Payables
Due ta MSME Partles -
Other than MSME Parties - -
Totsl - -
Trade Payables ageing schedule
Outstanding as on 31.03.2025
[+] ding for following periods from due date of Payment
Particuk ‘ Less than1 More than 3
1-2 years | 2-3 years Total
year yea L years
(1) MSME = = ]
(ii) Others A
{iil} Disputed Duss - MSME -
(v} Disputed Duss - Others -

Outstanding as on 31.03.2024
[+] ding for following perlods from due date of Payment
Particulars Movre tha
Lessthand | | o oars | 2-3years | MO thand Total
year years
{1y MSME ) =
[ii) Others -
(i) Disputad Dues - MSME = = =
(iv] Disputed Dues - Others - - -
Note No. 13 - Other Current Uabilives
L3
Asat As at

Parteutars March 31, 2035 | March31, 2024
R Aecelved in Ad
Deferred Revenue arising from Customer Loyallty Programme [
Daferred Revenue arising from Govemnment Grant - -
Statutory Dues Payable 120.52 112,91
(Others 92,47 104.45
Prowision for Tax 51.62 51.62

264.61 168.98

Total Other Current Usblides
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD

CIN:L31909DL1981PLCA26653

Notes forming part of the financlal statements as at March 31, 202%

{ All amounts in Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Note No. 14 - Revenue from QOperations

Year anded Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

{a) Sale of Products = -

{b) Consultancy Services 0.50 :

{c} Cther Operating Revenues - -

{d) Unbilled Revenue -
Total 0.50 -
Note No. 15 - Other Income

| Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

{a) Interest Income 0.04 0.08

ib) Liabiity no longer required W/back 14.59 42,37
Total 14.63 42,45

{b) Revanue from Fair Value of Investrment - -
Total : 2

{c) Other Non-operating Income (net of expenses directly atiributable to

such Income)
Cthers-Balances Written Back - -

Total = -
Grand Total 14.63 42.45
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD
CIN:L31909DL1981PLLA26653

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
{ All amounsts in Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Note No. 16 - Cost of Matarlals Consumed

Year ended Year ended
[parcusr March31,2025 | March 31, 2024
QOpening Stock - -
Add : Purchases -
Lass ; Closing Stock -
Total - -
Nota No. 17 - Finance Cost
Year ended Year anded
e March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Interest Expenses 5.55 5.33
Total 5.55 5.33
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SAMTEL INDIA LTD
CIN:L31909DL1981PLC426653

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
{ All amounts in Rs. LACS except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Note No. 18 - Other Expenses

'Parttculars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Salary 0.60] 2.38’
Advertisment - 0.41)
Depository Services 0.51 0.28r
Rates and Taxes 0.15 051
Legal & Professional Fees 13.01 4.30
Bad Debts / GST ITC Written off 1.10i 29.99|
Listing Fees 3.00 -
Auditors' Remuneration

- For Audit 1.00 1.00

- For Limited Review Quarterly Audit/ Other Matters 0.50 0.50’
Total 19.87 39.37
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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH 2025

Notes to Accounts
OVERVIEW

Samtel India Limited which commenced operations in the year 1983, was in the business of
manufacturing picture tubes for black & white televisions, trading in color television tubes and
supply of skilled and unskilled manpower. Primarily it will be carrying on trading activities in
electrical & electronics goods.

Simultaneously, the Company in consultation with other group companies is exploring the
possibility of venturing into development and production of state-of-the-art indigenous railway
displays for use in Indian Railways and other overseas users.

The Equity Shares of the company were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, however,
at present the same stand delisted vide order dated 08th May 2024 of the Bombay Stock
Exchange. Aggrieved, the company preferred appeal before the Hon’ble Securities Appellate
Tribunal. The Hon'ble Tribunal vide its Order dated April 30, 2025, has directed the Company to
make good all the non-compliances to get its equity shares listed again on the Stock Exchange.
The company is in the process of making compliances. Once compliances are completed, share
of the company will be listed again on the Bombay Stock Exchange. The registered and
corporate office of the company is situated in New Delhi.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015.

For all periods up to the period ended 31st March 2025, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 were the first financial statements

‘the company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting except for the
following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind
AS:

» Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at Fair value.
> Defined Benefit and other Long Term Employee Benefits,

The financial statements are presented in INR, and all values are rounded to nearest lacs, except
when otherwise indicated.
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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH 2025

The Company follows the Mercantile System of Accounting and recognizes income &
expenditure on an accrual basis except certain claims like those relating to Railways, Insurance,
Electricity, Customs, and Excise etc., which are accounted for on an acceptance basis on account
of uncertainties.

2) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities and
commitments at the end of the financial statements and results of operations during the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.
Difference between the actual result and estimates are recognized in the period in which the
results are known/ materialized.

3} Property, Plant and Equipment

a)

b)

d)

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and im pairment losses, if
any. Costs include costs of acquisitions or constructions, including incidental expenses
thereto and other attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use and are net of available duty/tax credits.

Expenditure during construction perlod

Expenditure related to and incurred during implementation of new/expansion-cum-

" modernization projects is included under capital work-in-progress and the same is

allocated to the respective fixed assets on completion of its construction/erection.
Intangible Assets

Expenditure incurred on rights/properties, where benefit is expected to follow in
future, is disclosed as intangible assets. These intangible assets are amortized/written
off aver the expected duration of benefit or 10 years, whichever is lower.

On transition to Ind AS the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of
all intangible assets as recognized at the end of the period from which the Ind AS is
adopted.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method (SLM) at the rates and
in the manner specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013, with effect from 1%
April 2014.
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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

4) Impairment of Assets

The 'carrying amount of assets is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date
wherever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

5) Valuation of Inventories

Stores & spares are valued at cost or under net realizable value. Stock-in- trade is valued
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is arrived at on the average weighted
basis. An appropriate share of labour and other overheads are included in the case of
work in progress and finished goods.

6) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
date of the transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reported
using the closing exchange rates on the date of the balance sheet.

In case of forward foreign exchange contracts, the premium or discount, arising at the
inception of such contracts, is as income or expense over the life of the contract and the
exchange differences on such contracts, i.e., difference between the exchange rate at
the reporting/ settiement date and the exchange rate on the date of inception of
contract/ the last reporting, is recognized as income /expense for the period.

7) Investments

Long-term investments are stated at cost unless there is a permanent diminution in the
value thereof.

8) Revenue Recognition
a) Sales are net of GST, returns and rebates. Products returned / rejected are accounted for in
the year of return/rejection. The revenue from sale of goods / services is recognized at the
time of invoicing.

b) Export sales are accounted for based on the date of the bill of lading/airways bill.

+ ¢) Export benefits available under the Export Import policy of the Government of India are
accounted for in the year of export, to the extent measurable.

d) Income from services is accounted for at the time of completion of service and billing thereof.

L] 1
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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317 MARCH 2025

9)

10)

11}

12)

Employee Benefits

Expenses & liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS}-19 —Employee Benefits’.

i) The contributions to the provident fund for ali employees and the contributions
to the superannuation and gratuity funds for managerial staff are charged to
revenue. Provision for gratuity (other than for managerial staff), determined
on an asthmatic (or actuarial) basis at the end of the year, is charged to the
revenue,

iiy Provision for leave entitlement, determined on an arithmetical (or actuarial)
basis at the end of the year, is charged to revenue.

Warranty
Provision for a warranty is made based on average cost as per experience.

Taxes on Income

Provision for current tax is made considering various allowances and benefits available
to the Company under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-12) ‘Accounting for Taxes on
Income’, deferred taxes resulting from timing differences between book and tax profits
are accounted for at the tax rate substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date to the
extent the timing differences are expected to be crystallized. Deferred tax assets are
recognized and reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to the extent there is
reasonable/virtual certainty of realizing such assets against future taxable income.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during
the specified period.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Commitments and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for present obligations of uncertain timing or amount arising
as a result of a past event where a reliable estimate can be made, and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as contingent liability and commitments, unless the probability of outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence er non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
and commitments unless the probability of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in
the financial statements.
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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH 2025

13} Cash Flow Statements

Cash low statements are reported using the indirect method, whereby a profit before
tax is adjusted for the effects of the transactions of non-cash nature & any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from the operating,
investing & financing activities of the Company are segregated.

14) Earnings Per Share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share (EPS)
comprise of the net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders. The number of
shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period adjusted for events of bonus issue post period end, bonus
elements in right issue to existing shareholders, share split, and reverse share split
{consolidation of shares). The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS,
after adjusting for the effect of potential dilutive equity shares unless impact is anti-
dilutive,

() CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

A) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Description Current Year Previous Year
a) | Income Tax demands whiere the cases are pending at 293.07 293.07
various stages of appeal with the authorities

B) Capital Commitment:

{IV)  In the opinion of the Board, Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a value on realization in the
ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the books of
accounts and provision for all known material liabilities have been made and considered adequate.

(V) Taxation

The Company has carried forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation under the Income tax Act, 1961.
However, in view of uncertainty of future taxable income of the Company, in accordance with Ind
AS-12” Income Taxes” notified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015, the net
deferred tax assets have not been recognized in the accounts.

(VI} The Company has already started the process of identifying the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
as defined under the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006”. However,
based on the information available from the Company as of now, no enterprises have been
identified who are registered under the said Act.

FRN: 0036838/, '/
New Delhi /.
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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH 2025

(Vi)  The Company had divested its entire holding of 32,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each in Samtel
Glass Limited at a sales consideration of Rs. 1.34 per share aggregating to Rs. 42,88,000, in earlier
financials year and the same has been accounted for in the current financial year.

(vin) Earning per share’, in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-20}

Current Year Previous Year
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rs. in Lakhs) {10.48) (2.25)
Number of Equity Shares (in nos.)
Issued and subscribed 70,87,943 70,87,943
Total number of shares including potential equity shares 70,87,943 70,87,943
Basic earnings per Share (Rs.) {0.015) (0.003)
Diluted earnings per Share {Rs.} (0.015} (0.003)

(IX) Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-108) ‘Segment Reporting”:

Segment Reporting: Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 “Segment Reporting”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company’s only business segmant
during the year relates to “Consultancy Services”. As a result, the disclosure requirements of Ind

AS are not applicable.

{X) Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS—24) ‘Related Party Disclosures’:

A, List of Related Parties and Relationships

Sl. No. | Nature of Relationship

Name of Related party

A Key Management Personnel

Satish K Kaura - Chairman and Managing Director
Anurag Manhas - Chief Financial Officer

B Other related parties in respect of which
the Company had transaction:
Associates

Nil

C Enterprises over which key management
personnel and/ or his relatives exercise
significant influence.

a) Samtel Color Limited (under liquidation)
b} Samtel Avionics Limited

¢) Samtel HAL Display Systems Limited
d) Samtel Technologies Limited

e) Samtel Machines & Projects Limited
f) Samtel Glass Limited

g) Kaura Properties Pvt. Limited

h) Fame Mercantile Pvt. Limited

i) Navketan Mercantile Pvt. Limited

j) Punswat Consultants Limited

k} Swaka Consultants Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR T

SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED

Transactions with Related Parties

HE YEAR ENDED 31%* MARCH 2025

{Rs.in Lakhs}

Particulars Associates Enterprises over which | Balance Qutstanding

Key Management

personnel or his

relatives exercise

significant influence
Transactions  during | Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
the year: Year Year Year Year Year Year
Samtel Glass Limited
Consultancy Services Nil Nil 0.50 Nil Nil Nil
Balances at the year
end:
(i) Receivables:
Samtel Avionics Ltd Nil Nil 323.99 330.19 323.99 330.19
Samtel Glass Limited Nil Nil 28.05 38.00 28.05 38.00
Kaura Properties Pvt. Nil Nil 2.17 2,17 217 217
Limited
Navkatan Mercantile Nil Nil 42.88 Nil 42.88 Nil
Pvt. Limited
(ii) Payables:
samtel Color Limited Nil Nil 9.80 9.80 9.80 9.80

Punswat Consultants Nil Nil .31 881 8.31 8.81
Ltd.
(iiii) Investments:
Samtel Color Limited Nil Nil 473.70 473.70 473.70 473.70
Samtel Glass Limited Nil Nil 512.12 555.00 512.12 555.00
{iv) Security in the ¥ * * ¥ & *
form of pledge given
elated to Samtel Color
Ltd *
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(xi}

(xn)

SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

*The Company has given undertakings to certain financial institutions not to dispose off its investments
without their prior consent till the loans sanctioned by them to the investee companies remain
outstanding fully provided.

After the closure of plant (Black and White pictures for Black and white TV Sets), the Company entered
various business activities including manpower supply, trading in electronic goods and computer
hardware. The Board is proposing to start trading of specific Electronics {tems from the next financial
year. During the year, the Company has provided consultancy services. In view of this, the management
has prepared and maintained its books of accounts on the concept of “going concern”.

In the earlier years, the Company has given security in the form of a pledge up to 59.00 lakhs fully paid-
up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Samtel Color Limited {SCL} held by the Company in favor of the bank
Acting as trustee for itself and as agent for other lenders of SCL as per the Corporate Debt Restructuring
(CDR) Scheme of SCL as approved by CDR Cell of RBI, as it has major investment in SCL and in view of the
management it would add long term value to the Company.

(XI) 7409 partly paid Equity Shares (paid up .Rs. 5.00 per share) have not forfeited yet.

(XIv) Additional Regulatory Information:

a) Clause {viii): Details of Benami Property held - Nil

b} Clause {x): Willful Defaulter - Nil

¢} Clause (xi): Relationship with Struck off Companies - Nil

d) Clause (xiii): Compliance with number of layers of Companies — NA

In terms of Clause B {I} of general instructions for preparation of Profit and Loss Account, there is no
undisclosed income which is not considered in Profit and Loss Accounts

{XV} Schedule of Ratios:

S| No. Particulars 2024-25 | 2023-24 Remarks
. Increase due to net decrease in

{a) Current Ratio 1.68 1.55 Current Liabilities

{b) Debt - Equity Ratio 0.04 0.04 | No Major Change

(c) | Bebt Service Coverage Ratio (119) | (0.26) E)es';"?ase M HEEES W5

D = -

(d) | Return on Equity Ratio (0.06) | (0.01) loi‘:ease R LS G
{e) Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA i -
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SAMTEL INDIA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH 2025

0 Trau:'le Receivable Turnover NA NA
Ratio -
Trade Payable Turnover
(&) Ratio ! Ng e -
{h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio NA NA -
(i) Net Profit Ratio NA NA -
(i) Return on Capital Employed (0.05) {0.01} | No Major Change
(k) Return on Investment NA NA -

(Xv1} All the applicable disclosures / information required in terms of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
as amended from time to time, the latest being vide Notification dated March 24, 2021, of the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, have been incorporated in this Financial Statements,

{XVII) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to conform to this year's
classification.

For R Sharma & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003683N ..
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AN ¢ 003883N / «

RAKESH SHARMA New Detnl #// SATISH K KAURA RAJESH K. BHALLA ANURAG MANHAS
Partner Vol  Director Director ° C.F.0.

Membership No: 082640 . DIN-00011202 DIN-07784556

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.05.2025

106



